
CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT

Regular Board Meeting 

3945 Rio Road, Carmel, CA 93923 

May 28, 2020 
Thursday 

9:00AM 

1



  Carmel   Area   Wastewater    District 
  P.O. Box 221428 Carmel California  93922 ❖ (831) 624-1248 ❖  FAX (831) 624-0811 

Barbara Buikema 
General Manager 

Ed Waggoner 
Operations Superintendent 

Robert R. Wellington 
Legal Counsel 

Board of Directors 

Gregory D'Ambrosio 

Michael K. Rachel 

Robert Siegfried 

Charlotte F. Townsend 

Ken White 

COVID-19 Public Meeting Procedures 

As per the Governor’s Executive Order #N-29-20 (March 17, 2020) the following will 

be in effect until rescinded. 

• CAWD will not make a physical location available from which members of the 
public may observe and offer public comment.

• All CAWD public meetings shall take place via teleconferencing and shall be 
posted on the District website (www.cawd.org) and allow members of the public 
to attend and address the meeting electronically.

• The District will give advance notice of all teleconference meeting as prescribed 
by the Brown Act

• The public may listen to the meeting by logging on to the District website and 
clicking on the Virtual Webinar.

• Public comment may be submitted 24 hours prior to the meeting by clicking on 
the “Public Comment Form” listed directly beneath the Virtual Webinar on our 
website.  If received within 24 hours of the meeting we will ensure that a 
response is given at the meeting.   Any comments after the cutoff will still 
receive a response; however, it may not be during the meeting.

• The District is requesting that the public submit comments at least 24 hours in 
advance of the scheduled meeting to enable staff to post all comment on the 
District web site.  Any comment received after this time will be posted after the 
Board meeting.

• The teleconference Board meeting will require that all voting is done by roll call

• The teleconference Board meeting will require that speakers identify themselves 
prior to addressing other attendees in order to facilitate the flow of the  meeting 
and minimize confusion.

• The District advises that the public refer to our web site periodically for updates 
regarding the District and Board activity.

2

http://www.cawd.org/


STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Mark Dias, Safety and Compliance 

Administrator 
 
Date:  May 28, 2020 
 
Subject: Update on Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) Risk Mitigation and 

Response Efforts 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
It is recommended the Board of Directors receive an update and presentation on current 
efforts to address risks from COVID-19.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
At the March 26, 2020 regular Board meeting the Board adopted a tiered response plan 
designed to ensure the protection of employees and the continued operation of the 
treatment facility and collection system at the outset of the pandemic.  That plan was 
based on the emerging practices available in the industry at that time.  
 
Since March, the Federal Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) and 
the Centers for Disease Control (CDC) have issued requirements and guidance, 
respectively, for employers. Although COVID-19 is a unique and rapidly changing 
virus the new regulations essentially treat it like any other workplace hazard. Whenever 
an employer becomes aware of a new workplace hazard the employer must develop a 
policy for that hazard. Other examples of hazards would be use of a new chemical, a 
new dangerous piece of equipment, a new confined space, etc. 
 
Exposure Control Plan 
In late April District staff became aware that California Sanitation Risk Management 
Authority (CSRMA) had coordinated with consultants who are able to develop 
Exposure Control Plans (ECPs) for member agencies at a nominal cost of $2,250. Staff 
quickly secured a contract with CSRMA and the draft plan should be finalized by end 
of May.   
 
In essence, the ECP will break down work tasks by job classification and assign a risk 

  

3



factor for each task. The appropriate engineering, administrative and protective controls 
will be assigned for each task.  
 
Testing Employees for COVID 
Staff is investigating possible approaches for pre-emptive testing of staff in the event 
routine testing is determined to be necessary and feasible. The availability and cost of 
testing has been rapidly evolving, and a policy for testing CAWD employees has yet to 
be developed. However, the following exploratory steps have been taken: 

1. Staff has looked into the availability of rapid response tests for use in screening 
individuals before they come onsite to the WWTP. Staff have not found any such 
rapid response tests available yet. The fastest tests readily available provide 
results in about two to three days after the test. Therefore, testing employees and 
vendors as a screening tool before they come onsite does not appear to be 
feasible at this time. 

2. Staff has obtained thermometers to take temperatures as an onsite screening tool. 
Routine temperature checks have not started. 

3. Staff contacted our District physician and started researching availability of 
onsite COVID testing administered by a nurse practitioner. Staff have not found 
any special testing services that will come to CAWD and administer tests on our 
site, but we will keep looking. 

4. Staff has identified several available options for COVID testing. 
a.  At home testing kit provided by “Pixel by LabCorp” – This test costs $110 

but is free when individual health insurance information is entered. Test 
kits can be obtained online but availability of the test can be limited by the 
provider and so this option may not provide an ongoing supply of testing. 

b. Community Testing Sites – There are several community testing sites in 
the Monterey Peninsula and Salinas Valley. Offsite testing sites vary in 
cost and distance from CAWD. Staff are currently trying to develop a 
potential protocol for sending employees to get tested. It could take two to 
three hours of staff time (round trip) to utilize any of the community 
testing sites. Community testing sites can mostly be utilized free of cost 
although some sites have been charging for tests without insurance 
presented. 

5. Staff has contacted local private labs (Quest Diagnostics, and Lab Corp) which 
revealed that the private labs do not provide test kits or administer tests at this 
time. They are currently only analyzing samples provided by other organizations 
who are administering the tests (such as from the community testing sites). 

  
Mark Dias, Safety and Compliance Administrator will give a brief presentation during 
the May 28 CAWD Board meeting. 
 

4



 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
The cost for the ECP is $2,250 and can be covered under existing accounts if 
reimbursement is unavailable. 
 
The costs for the recent efforts to secure PPE and disinfectants have been modest to 
date. The District has purchased or placed orders for additional supplies (i.e. gloves, 
face masks, etc.).  Some supplies were procured immediately. Other supplies such as 
disinfectants have been obtained since the last Board report.  Various styles of masks 
have been obtained to use within 6 feet of coworkers. N95 masks are still in short 
supply and are being used carefully.   
 
Future engineering controls to implement the ECP may involve more significant costs; 
for such things as reconfiguring work spaces at the WWTP to better separate 
employees, remodeling the admin building to isolate areas used by the public from the 
main office space, and/or purchasing new decontamination equipment such as UV-C 
lights. 
 
We continue to apply COVID-19 response costs to the new, specific General Ledger 
number created for this event.  This will enable accurate and readily available 
accounting of costs.   
 

5



  
CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT   

REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES  
April 30, 2020 

 
Teleconference Webinar 

(See California Executive Order N-29-20 during Covid19 Pandemic) 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL - The meeting was called to order at 9:02 a.m.  
 
Present:  Directors: D’ Ambrosio, Robert Siegfried, Charlotte Townsend, Michael Rachel, 

And President White 
Absent:  None 
 

A quorum was present.  
 

Others:    Via Zoom 
Barbara Buikema, General Manager, Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD) 

                     Rachel Lather, District Engineer, CAWD 
                     Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer, CAWD 
                     Ed Waggoner, Plant Superintendent, CAWD 
        Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent, CAWD 
                     Daryl Lauer, Collections Superintendent, CAWD 
                     Domine Barringer, Administrative Assistant/Board Clerk, CAWD 
                     Kristina Pacheco, Administrative Assistant/Board Clerk, CAWD 
                     Rob Wellington, Wellington Law Offices, CAWD Legal Counsel 
                     Jeffrey Froke, Vice President, Pebble Beach Community Service District (PBCSD) 
                     Mike Niccum, General Manager, PBCSD 

   
1. President White expressed gratitude for the board members who submitted 

comments/questions of Agenda items in advance of the meeting.  The President also 
acknowledged the work of staff in preparation of the meeting.  
 

Director Townsend also wished to note the enormous amount of work that the staff 
and the General Manager, Barbara Buikema, continue to do.  
  

2 .  Public Comments:  
 

No public comment 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: APPROVAL OF MINUTES, FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND MONTHLY REPORTS 

The Consent Agenda consists of routine items for which Board approval can be taken with a 

6



single motion and vote. A Board Member may request that any item be placed on the Regular 
Agenda for separate consideration. 
 

3. Brief discussion was held of the Consent Calendar, and due to technical difficulties, 
Director Siegfried left the meeting at 9:12 a.m.  Discussion continued with the 
remaining Board members.  The Board agreed to move the formal receipt and 
approval of the Consent Agenda to the end of the meeting to provide Director 
Siegfried a chance for discussion. 
 

4. Agenda Changes:  
• Page 68 of the Board packet - project #18-18 status update 
• Page 96 of the Board packet – language modification 
• Pages 104-109 of the Board packet – inclusion of the April 28, 2020 bid 

opening for project #18-17 the Hatton Canyon Pipeline Replacement Project 

 
ACTION ITEMS BEFORE THE BOARD 

Action Items consist of business which requires a vote by the Board. These items are 
acted upon in the following sequence: (1) Staff Report (2) Board Questions to Staff (3) Public 
Comments, and (4) Board Discussion and Action. 

 

RESOLUTIONS 
 

5. Resolution No. 2020-21; report given by General Manager, Barbara Buikema 
 

Board Action 
After brief discussion, a motion to approve was made by Director D’Ambrosio and 
seconded by Director Townsend. Following a Roll Call vote, the Board adopted 
Resolution No. 2020-21 to designate the General Manager as the District’s 
Authorized Agent recognized by the State of California Governor’s Office of 
Emergency Services (Cal OES).  

 
6. Resolution No. 2020-22; report given by Collections Superintendent, Daryl Lauer, 

& Principal Engineer, Rachél Lather 

Director Siegfried rejoined the meeting at 9:25 a.m.  
 

Board Action 
After brief discussion, a motion to approve was made by Director Rachel and 
seconded by Director D’Ambrosio.  Following a Roll Call vote, the Board unanimously 
adopted Resolution No. 2020-22, approving the Sewer Line Chemical Root Control 
Policy. 

 

7



7. Resolution No. 2020-23; report given by Collections Superintendent, Daryl Lauer 
 

Board Action 
After discussion, a motion to approve was made by Director Townsend and seconded 
by Director Siegfried. Following a Roll Call vote, the Board unanimously adopted 
Resolution No. 2020-23, declaring the 2008 VAC-CON Hydro/Vacuum Cleaning Truck 
as surplus district property, and authorizing the General Manager to sell the vehicle 
to Sunnyslope County Water District for $51,000.  

 
8. Resolution No. 2020-24; report given by Principal Engineer, Rachél Lather 

 
Board Action 

After a brief discussion, a motion to approve was made by Director Siegfried and 
seconded by Director D’Ambrosio. Following a Roll Call vote, the Board unanimously 
adopted Resolution No. 2020- 24, authorizing the General Manager to contract with 
PSOMAS to provide construction management and inspection services for the Hatton 
Canyon Pipeline Replacement Project #18-17 in an amount of $165,020.  

 
9. Resolution No. 2020-25; report given by Principal Engineer, Rachél Lather   

 
Board Action 

A motion to approve was made by Director Rachel and seconded by Director 
Townsend.  Following a Roll Call vote, the Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 
2020-25, accepting the lowest responsible bid for the Hatton Canyon Pipeline 
Replacement Project #18-17, and authorizing the General Manager to contract with 
that bidder for the construction of the project.  

 

OTHER ITEMS BEFORE THE BOARD 
 

10. Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) election of a regular member to 
Commission - Report by General Manager, Barbara Buikema 

 
Board Action 

A motion to approve was made by Director Siegfried and seconded by Director 
D’Ambrosio. Following a Roll Call vote, the Board unanimously agreed to nominate 
Warren “Pete” Poitras to the Independent Special District Representative (Regular) 
seat on the Commission of LAFCO of Monterey County.   

 
INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 
11. There was no update on the proposed Mr. Larsen sewer connection in Carmel 

Highlands. 

8



 
12. There was no discussion regarding the April 24, 2020 PBCSD Board meeting 

report.  
 
STAFF & BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 

Staff Reports include items for which verbal reports/presentation will be provided. If a specific 
presentation is planned, it will be listed, and summary information may be included with the 
Agenda.  Brief oral reports may be provided for items arising after the Agenda preparation. The 
Board may wish to ask questions or discuss a staff report, but no action is appropriate other 
than referral to staff, or request that a matter be set as a future Agenda Item. 

 
COMMUNICATIONS 

13. The General Manager’s Report - The General Manager reported that she will be on 
vacation from May 11th to May 24th and the Plant Engineer will be the Acting 
General Manager during that time. She also reported the Occupational Safety and 
Health Administration (OSHA) requirement of employers needing to have a Risk 
and Mitigation Plan for COVID-19 in place and requests that the Board approve 
improvements to the Administrative building to protect employees from possible 
exposure to the coronavirus that causes COVID-19. Further discussion on the 
subject and the formation of a committee to complete the OSHA requirements and 
additional safety of staff is needed.  
 

14. Announcements on Subjects of Interest to the Board Made by Members of the 
Board or Staff                       

       Oral reports or announcements from Board President, Directors or staff concerning their 
activities and/or meetings or conferences attended. 

 
• There was discussion of an article that was circulated to the Board of Directors about 

composting toilets.  It was suggested that CAWD research composting toilets as a 
potential approach for the future.  The Board agreed and research and development will 
be addressed by the existing Sea Level Rise Committee.   

 
• It was reported that the Board retreat has been put on hold. 

 
• Director Rachel is scheduled to attend the Friday, May 29, 2020 PBCSD Board Meeting.  

 
• Director Townsend is scheduled to attend the Special Districts Association of 

Monterey County meeting on Thursday, July 21, 2020. 
 

• Director Townsend and Director White are scheduled to attend the Reclamation 
Management Committee meeting on Wednesday, May 13, 2020 at 9:30 a.m. via a Zoom 
teleconference webinar. 

9



 
ACTION ITEMS BEFORE THE BOARD 

Action Items consist of business which requires a vote by the Board. These items are 
acted upon in the following sequence: (1) Staff Report (2) Board Questions to Staff (3) Public 
Comments, and (4) Board Discussion and Action. 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR: APPROVAL OF MINUTES, FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND MONTHLY REPORTS (further discussion to 
include Director Siegfried) 

 
Board Action 

After a continued discussion from the beginning of the meeting that included 
Director Siegfried, a motion to receive and approve was made by Director Siegfried 
and seconded by Director Townsend.  After a Roll Call vote, the Board unanimously 
received and approved the Meeting Minutes and the following Consent 
Calendar/Agenda items: 

 
15. Budget Committee Meeting Minutes of March 23, 2020  
 
16.  Regular Board Meeting Minutes of March 26, 2020 
 
17. Bank Statement Review by Hayashi Wayland – March 2020 
 
18. Schedule of Cash Receipts and Disbursements – March 2020 

 
19. Register of Disbursements - Carmel Area Wastewater District – March 2020 
 
20. Register of Disbursements – CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project – March 2020  
 
21. Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules – March 2020 
 
22. Collection System Superintendent’s Report (March, February & January 2020) 
 
23. Safety and Regulatory Compliance Report – March 2020 
 

24. Treatment Facility Operations Report – (March, February & January 2020)  
 
25. Laboratory/Environmental Compliance Report – March 2020 
 
26. Capital Projects Report/Implementation Plan 
 

10



27. Project Summaries 
 
28. Plant Operations Report – March 2020 
 
29. Maintenance Projects Report – March 2020 
 
30. Principal Engineer Monthly Report General Engineering – March 2020      

 
31. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the President adjourned the meeting 
at 10:17 a.m. The next Regular Meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m., Thursday, May 28, 2020 or an 
alternate acceptable date, via teleconference webinar. The teleconference webinar is hosted 
through Zoom and you may receive access by visiting our website homepage, www.cawd.org, 
calling the District office at 831-624-1248 or via email at downstream@cawd.org. 

 

As Reported To: 

 

____________________________________________________ 

Domine Barringer, Secretary to the Board 

APPROVED: 

________________________________________________ 
Ken White, President 

11

http://www.cawd.org/


 

CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT (CAWD)  
PENSION COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES  

April 29, 2020 at 10:00 a.m. 
Via “Go-to-Meeting” 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL  The meeting commenced at 9:00 a.m.    
 
Present:  Director Michael Rachel, Trustee & Committee member 

Counsel, Robert Wellington, Trustee & Committee member 
General Manager, Barbara Buikema, Trustee & Committee member 

 
Absent:  None 

 
Others:  William J. Hastie, Jr., Managing Partner, Hastie Financial Group 
  Haley Hitchman, Partner, Hastie Financial Group 
   
 
AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

1. Review of SAM Pension Plan performance for the 1st Quarter 2020 and Action Plan for 
2nd Quarter 2020 with the Hastie Financial Group. 
 

Following discussion of the items on the agenda no action was taken and there was 
nothing further to report.   

 
ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business to come before the Committee the meeting 
adjourned at 10:45 a.m. The next Regular Board Meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m., Thursday, May 28, 
2020 or an alternate, acceptable date, via ZOOM meeting. 

 

As Reported To: 

 

____________________________________________________ 

Kristina Pacheco, Secretary to the Board 

APPROVED: 

________________________________________________ 
Ken White, President 

12



13



14



Capital Compensated Defend or COUNTY Union Bank Union Bank

Capital Improvement General O & M Accruals Managed  Retreat Total Fund Bank O & M Bank PR L.A.I.F.

Fund Reserve Fund Reserve Reserve Balance Balance Balance Balance

BALANCE BEGINNING OF MONTH $5,782,657 $13,429,331 $11,295,342 $209,216 $2,000,000 $32,716,545 $701,104 $114,749 $1,178,922

Receipts:

   User Fees 2,775,543 100

   Property Taxes 724,583

   PBCSD Treatment Fees 180,000

   Reclamation O & M reimbursement 56,426

   Reclamation capital billing

   Permits 3,345

   PBCSD capital billing

   Other misc. revenue 7,750

   Interest income 182,712 1 5,933

   Connection Fees

   Plan Review

   W/C audit refund

   CCLEAN receipts 13,491

   Pooled liability dividend

   Void checks

        Total Receipts 0 724,583 2,958,255 0 0 3,682,839 261,112 1 5,933

Fund Transfers:

   Transfers to Union Bank O&M

   Transfers to Union Bank PR (225,000) 225,000

   Transfer to Defend or Managed Retreat Fund

   Intra-fund transfers for capital expenditures (46,389) 46,389

   Rebalance Capital and O&M Reserves

        Total Transfers (46,389) 0 46,389 0 0 0 (225,000) 225,000 0

Disbursements:

   Operations and capital 399,200

   Payroll & payroll taxes 207,528

   Employee Dental reimbursements 153

   CALPERS EFT 31,445

   CAWD SAM pension EFT 0

   CAWD pension loans EFT 587

   Home Depot EFT 0

   US Bank EFT 6,733

   Deferred comp contributions EFT 9,035

   PEHP contributions EFT 2,933

   Bank/ADP fees 0 480

   Highlands Bond Debt Service Payment

   Annual County admin billing fee

   Unfunded CALPERS liability

   Void deposit check-NSF

         Total Disbursements 0 0 0 0 0 0 438,117 219,976 0

BALANCE END OF MONTH 5,736,267 14,153,914 14,299,986 209,216 2,000,000 36,399,384 299,099 119,774 1,184,856

Carmel Area Wastewater District
Schedule of Cash Receipts and Disbursements - APRIL 2020

15



Capital Reserve + O&M + O&M Reserve + Compensated Absences Reserve = Total Fund held in County

0

5,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

20,000,000

25,000,000

30,000,000

35,000,000

40,000,000

Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20

Total Fund Balances 19-20Capital Reserves

O&M

Comp Absences

Retreat Reserve

Total

16



0

2,000,000

4,000,000

6,000,000

8,000,000

10,000,000

12,000,000

14,000,000

16,000,000

Capital Capital Reserve O&M Compensated Absences Managed Retreat Reserve

5,736,267 

14,153,914 14,299,986 

209,216 

2,000,000 

5,817,513 

11,608,466 

12,428,301 

177,695 

1,000,000 

2019-20
2018-19

17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



 

STAFF REPORT   
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Daryl Lauer, Collection Superintendent 
 
Date:             May 28, 2020  
         
Subject: Monthly Report – April 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report- Informational only; no action required.  
      
Permits Issued 
 
Sewer Lateral Permits issued in April           …..........................................                            19 
 
Total Fees     ....................................................................................................... $3,010.00 
 
Maintenance  
 
Attached is a map of the locations cleaned in past three months. There were no Closed-
Circuit Television (CCTV) sewer line inspections performed during the month of April.  
 

Cleaning period Footage 
Cleaned 

Percentage Cleaned Size of Pipe Cleaned 

April 47,194 ft. 11.48% 6 – 27 inches 
March  44,780 ft. 10.89% 6 - 27 inches 

February 42,355 ft. 10.30% 6 – 12 inches 
 
Construction activities 
 

• Contractors replaced 13 manhole frame and lids at various locations around the 
Carmel lagoon area.  

 

 

48



 
Staff Development 

 
• Staff completed several online safety equipment trainings and attended multiple 

webinars related to COVID-19 during April. 
 
General comments 
 

• Staff continues to perform well during the shelter in place order. Staff is practicing 
social distancing with other staff and contractors, driving to locations throughout 
the District in separate vehicles. Staff is educated on the best practices of Personal 
Protective Equipment (PPE) and personal hygiene. Staff has been cleaning and 
sanitizing buildings, equipment, and vehicles daily as part of their routine duties. 
  

Service calls responded to by crew 
 

Date Time Callout Resolution 
4/6/20 8:25 AM Lateral Overflow Called by the homeowner for a 

lateral overflowing. Staff found no 
problems in District sewer main 
lines. Staff informed homeowner to 
call a plumber of their choice.  

 
USA Location Requests – 54 
Plumbing Permit Inspections – 20 
Private Sewer Lateral Compliance Certificates Issued – 13 

          
 

FUNDING 
N/A 
 
 

 
  

49



5/12/2020

50

lauer
Text Box
April (Red)               47,194 feetMarch (Yellow)        44,780 feetFebruary (Green)    42,355 feet             Monthly Cleaning Map



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Mark Dias, Safety and 

Regulatory Compliance Administrator 
 
Date:  May 28, 2020 
 
Subject: Monthly Safety Report (for April 2020) 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report - Informational only; no action required.  
 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Safety & Training 
 

• April- COVID 19 updates to management and staff.  April was a very busy 
month to track the pandemic as the number of data sources and news sources 
grew exponentially. Mark Dias, Safety and Compliance Administrator (S/C 
Admin Dias), tracked these sources and provided updates as needed. On April 3, 
the Monterey County Health Officer issued an updated order, which required 
the implementation of distancing protocols, and required posting key 
information to protect employees.  This was posted at prominent locations at 
both the Administration and Plant buildings. 
  

• April tailgates cancelled.  Social distancing became mandatory in April and so in 
person tailgates were not held.  Electronic tailgates began again in May.   

 
Ongoing Safety Improvements 
 
During April, Maintenance Superintendent Foley and S/C Admin Dias continued to 
implement safety improvements and seek input from the operations crew and the 
Safety Committee.  Activities in April included:  
 

  

51



• Begin update of electrical grounding program.  Cal OSHA requires that workers 
be protected from electrocution from temporary power connections. This covers 
the use of extension cords and the myriad of hand-held electrical tools, 
compressors, pumps, lights, etc. that are plugged into outdoor outlets. The most 
direct way to achieve this is for all electrical outlets to be protected with Ground 
Fault Circuit Interruption (GFCI) devices. GFCI trip within micro-seconds and 
help to prevent shock to people. In contrast, typical panel circuit breakers and 
fuses work much slower since they designed to protect the equipment, not 
people.  While CAWD’s existing program is functional, some systematic 
upgrades are called for. Additional portable rainproof GFCI devices will be 
ordered and placed in new storage boxes all around the plant to make them 
immediately available at the work locations. Outlets will be upgraded to GFCI 
sockets when practical, and when not, they will be clearly labeled that a portable 
unit must be used. Refresher training will be completed. 
 

• Marking of low-visibility obstructions and trip hazards. As part of the COVID-19 
distancing efforts, new night shifts were implemented in April. Half of the plant 
staff worked from 3:00 PM to 11:00 PM. After sunset many parts of the plant are 
kept dark due to the District’s neighbor-friendly light pollution policy.  Trip 
hazards that would be obvious during daytime are much harder to see at night. 
These include hazards from all the cords, hoses, valves, piping and equipment 
found at an industrial site. In response, S/C Admin Dias walked the site each 
evening and cleared walkways and placed reflective safety cones next to 
equipment. He also added reflective markers to protruding objects especially 
around blind corners or hidden by vegetation. These markers will also help truck 
drivers and contractors who are unfamiliar with the site, and who are driving at 
dusk or dawn in the winter months.    

 
Tours and Outreach 
 
Tours have been put on hold per current health orders. 
 
Injuries; first aid responses; worker compensation claims 
 
There was one minor first aid incident where a plant worker sustained a cut to the palm 
of his hand while handling a sharp piece of metal. The employee treated the wound, 
remained at work for the day and resumed duties the next workday without further 
complications. 
  
There was a potential Worker’s Comp claim for lower back pain that was retroactively 

52



filed by an employee several days after the potential injury. The District’s worker’s 
comp insurance carrier, Sedgwick (formerly York), is investigating the matter to 
determine if it is work related. The employee was on light duty for a week and has been 
cleared by the worker’s comp physician to return to full duty. 
 
The updated tracking matrix is below. 
 

 Work Related Injuries and Illnesses for 2020 Reporting Year  

TYPE 

New  
Incidents 
(Month) 

Total  
Incidents 

(Year) 

Total Days Away 
from Work 

(Year) 

Total Days of Job 
Restriction 

(Year) 

Cumulative days 
lost  

(Year) 
OSHA 
Injuries 

0 0 0 0 0 

OSHA 
Illnesses 

0 0 0 0 0 

Other WC 
Claims 

1 0 0 5 0 

First Aid 
(non-OSHA) 

1 6 0 0 0 

 
 
FUNDING 
N/A- Informational item only 

53



% of Total MG

60.101 113.25

39.899 68.63

100.00 181.88

31.657 63.39

76.261 131.17

0.000 0.000

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR

2064.85 N/A N/A N/A

1920.96 N/A N/A N/A

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation percentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for

Tertiary's power costs due to the Lab's power usage

(2) No power production due to new Micro-Turbine control programming in progress

2344.93 2255.78

 Reclamation Total                                      

102,059.80 20,348.64$  11,111.46$  

2020

17,323.40$                              

2283.22

31,049.41$                           

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR

1553.08

1924.16

1 QTR 3 QTR

1.400

4.733

557.92

8.30 BG (25.46 K acre-ft.)

4.387

347.40

194.45

0.000

Feb'20

210.52

402.37

0.000

315.08 MG (966.97 acre-ft.)

0.000

1.227

0.196

Mar'20

1.694

13,226.56$  

0.220$            

45,402.96

25,684.79$  28,024.17$  

13,462.38$                           

6,937.62$     

0.190$            7,181.05$                              

7,122.08$     

COMMENTS

MF/RO

63.39MG (194.45acre-ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94-20)                 

4,173.84$     

6,492.59$                              

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production,kWh (2)

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for:               

April 2020

16.054

1.289

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production               

0

Jan'19

2019

Accumulated Totals

20,119.15$                           

69,729.00

140,719.00

32,330.80

24,758.08$                           

Feb'20

5,977.29$     

6,569.94$                              

10,844.00$                           

758,331.00

17,413.94$                           

6,656.77$                              

0

Jan '19

0

2 QTR

7,232.74$                              

Mar '20Apr '20 KWh 

14,413.79$                           

kW-h Per Acre Foot

0

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow

0.769 2.693

2020 YEAR-TO-DATE

acre-feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

20.234

50.713

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, MG

38.674

CAWD Total          

19,707.50$  

0.458

Apr'20

0.000

1.01630.479

Monthly Totals

1.690

0.674

0.128

1.029

Apr '20 kWh

0.141$            

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2020)                      

186,121.96

0.000

Ocean Discharge

Price per kWh

0.154$            

CAWD Total

CAWD 1174.96

18,265.49$                           

6,421.56$     

Reclamation

1568.27 1725.97

Reclaim Total

21,602.61$  

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals 

54



Month

May 19

Jun 19

Jul 19

Aug 19

Sep 19

Oct 19

Nov 19

Dec 19

Jan 20

Feb 20

Mar 20

Apr 20

Totals

Average

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

May 19 Jun 19 Jul 19 Aug 19 Sep 19 Oct 19 Nov 19 Dec 19 Jan 20 Feb 20 Mar 20 Apr 20

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

May 19 Jun 19 Jul 19 Aug 19 Sep 19 Oct 19 Nov 19 Dec 19 Jan 20 Feb 20 Mar 20 Apr 20

Total Inflow PBCSD Influent Flow, mg

CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

May 19 Jun 19 Jul 19 Aug 19 Sep 19 Oct 19 Nov 19 Dec 19 Jan 20 Feb 20 Mar 20 Apr 20

Total Golf Course Usage Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

55



% of Total MG

62.101 82.77

37.899 48.40

100.00 131.17

11.853 47.34

96.823 92.50

0.000 0.000

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR

2064.85 N/A N/A N/A

1920.96 N/A N/A N/A

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation percentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for Tertiary's 

power costs due to the Lab's power usage

(2) No power production due to the Micro-Turbine chiller malfunction 

2344.93 2255.78

 Reclamation Total                                      

41,159.08 11,111.46$  14,413.79$  

2020

15,938.76$                              

2283.22

24,634.10$                           

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR

1553.08

1924.16

1 QTR 3 QTR

1.069

3.645

402.36

8.28 BG (25.41 K acre-ft.)

3.495

253.90

145.21

0.000

Jan'20

148.45

283.74

0.000

321.68 MG (987.23 acre-ft.)

0.000

1.066

0.384

Feb'20

1.394

4,173.84$     

0.210$            

42,844.16

24,758.08$  25,684.79$  

20,135.92$                           

7,232.74$     

0.516$            6,569.94$                              

6,937.62$     

COMMENTS

MF/RO

47.34MG (145.21acre-ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94-20)                 

7,181.05$     

6,656.77$                              

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production,kWh (2)

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for:               

March 2020

6.358

1.675

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production               

0

Dec'19

2019

Accumulated Totals

26,017.95$                           

8,089.00

133,343.00

33,070.08

20,119.15$                           

Jan'20

6,492.59$     

20,713.96$                           

13,984.80$                           

758,331.00

34,698.76$                           

5,882.03$                              

0

Dec '19

0

2 QTR

10,844.00$                           

Feb '20Mar '20 KWh 

17,413.94$                           

kW-h Per Acre Foot

0

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow

0.712 2.101

2020 YEAR-TO-DATE

acre-feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

20.330

53.642

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, MG

51.938

CAWD Total          

18,265.49$  

0.354

Mar'20

0.000

1.07433.312

Monthly Totals

1.730

0.656

0.102

0.908

Mar '20 kWh

0.140$            

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2020)                      

176,187.16

0.000

Ocean Discharge

Price per kWh

0.148$            

CAWD Total

CAWD 1174.96

13,462.38$                           

5,977.29$     

Reclamation

1568.27 1725.97

Reclaim Total

19,707.50$  

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals 

56



Month

Apr 19

May 19

Jun 19

Jul 19

Aug 19

Sep 19

Oct 19

Nov 19

Dec 19

Jan 20

Feb 20

Mar 20

Totals

Average

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul 19 Aug 19 Sep 19 Oct 19 Nov 19 Dec 19 Jan 20 Feb 20 Mar 20

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul 19 Aug 19 Sep 19 Oct 19 Nov 19 Dec 19 Jan 20 Feb 20 Mar 20

Total Inflow PBCSD Influent Flow, mg

CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul 19 Aug 19 Sep 19 Oct 19 Nov 19 Dec 19 Jan 20 Feb 20 Mar 20

Total Golf Course Usage Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

57



% of Total MG

65.684 49.46

34.316 28.07

100.00 77.53

44.079 40.98

61.744 40.56

0.000 0.000

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR

N/A N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A N/A

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation percentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for Tertiary's 

power costs due to the Lab's power usage

(2) No power production due to the Micro-Turbine chiller malfunction 

2344.93 2255.78

 Reclamation Total                                      

96,511.44 14,413.79$  17,413.94$  

2020

15,128.58$                              

2283.22

24,043.29$                           

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR

1553.08

1924.16

1 QTR 3 QTR

1.041

1.589

237.81

8.27 BG (25.39 K acre-ft.)

1.415

151.72

125.71

0.000

Dec'20

86.09

124.42

0.000

315.32 MG (967.71 acre-ft.)

0.000

1.052

0.283

Jan'20

0.558

7,181.05$     

0.214$            

48,123.20

20,119.15$  24,758.08$  

21,644.01$                           

10,844.00$  

0.114$            20,713.96$                           

7,232.74$     

COMMENTS

MF/RO

40.98MG (125.71acre-ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94-20)                 

6,569.94$     

5,882.03$                              

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production,kWh (2)

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for:               

February 2020

15.126

0.731

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production               

0

Nov'19

2019

Accumulated Totals

29,956.63$                           

62,732.00

131,530.00

33,779.44

26,017.95$                           

Dec'20

6,656.77$     

21,638.69$                           

11,727.35$                           

758,331.00

33,366.04$                           

8,312.62$                              

0

Nov '19

6,865

2 QTR

13,984.80$                           

Jan '20Feb '20 KWh 

34,698.76$                           

kW-h Per Acre Foot

0

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report                                  

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow

0.726 0.857

2020 YEAR-TO-DATE

acre-feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

11.776

34.316

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, MG

21.188

CAWD Total          

13,462.38$  

0.326

Feb'20

0.000

0.77722.540

Monthly Totals

1.183

0.406

0.107

0.772

Feb '20 kWh

0.135$            

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2020)                      

179,653.20

0.000

Ocean Discharge

Price per kWh

0.139$            

CAWD Total

CAWD 1174.96

20,135.92$                           

6,492.59$     

Reclamation

1568.27 1725.97

Reclaim Total

18,265.49$  

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals 

58



Month

Mar 19

Apr 19

May 19

Jun 19

Jul 19

Aug 19

Sep 19

Oct 19

Nov 19

Dec 19

Jan 20

Feb 20

Totals

Average

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul 19 Aug 19 Sep 19 Oct 19 Nov 19 Dec 19 Jan 20 Feb 20

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul 19 Aug 19 Sep 19 Oct 19 Nov 19 Dec 19 Jan 20 Feb 20

Total Inflow PBCSD Influent Flow, mg

CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul 19 Aug 19 Sep 19 Oct 19 Nov 19 Dec 19 Jan 20 Feb 20

Total Golf Course Usage Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

59



STAFF REPORT  
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Ray De Ocampo - Laboratory/Environmental 

Compliance Supervisor 
 

Date:  May 28, 2020 
 
Subject: Monthly Report – April 2020 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Receive Report - Informational only; No action required 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
LABORATORY REPORT 

• On April 13, 2020, the laboratory supervisor made changes to the work schedule 
to improve COVID-19 distancing. The laboratory analysts are currently rotating 
working from home and in the lab on a weekly basis. One analyst would be at 
the lab each day. The laboratory supervisor is working his regular schedule.  
When at home, the lab analysts are assigned to work on revising the laboratory 
standard operating procedures for the laboratory accreditation.  Prior to this the 
lab was trying out a daytime and swing shift schedule to reduce the face to face 
interaction and promote COVID-19 safety goals. 

• Requests were made to the University of Arizona WEST center and Biobot 
Analytics Inc. for CAWD to take part in COVID-19 testing in the wastewater.  We 
did not get a response back from University of Arizona. However, we were 
accepted into the Biobot study and are sending out samples on a weekly basis.  
The normal cost for each sampling kit is $1,200.00. The District received 
preferred pricing for the first month of $120.00 per sampling kit as a thank you 
for being part of the national study. The District will be collecting composite 
samples at 4 sample sites (Influent, Secondary Effluent, Final Effluent, and 
Reclaimed Effluent).  Sample collection will be on a weekly schedule May 4, 11, 
18, and 25, 2020.  

 
 
 
 

  

60



 
ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE REPORT 

• Mr. De Ocampo has been working with Highlands Inn Assistant Engineer Pat 
Okeefe to complete the plumbing connection to the grease interceptor.  Mr. 
Okeefe is now the new Highlands Inn Engineer replacing Mr. Riffle this month.  
A new plumbing company will be hired to complete the work to connect two 
drains to the grease interceptor.  Highlands Inn has been closed since the 
Monterey County Health Department Order required nonessential businesses to 
close.  Mr. Okeefe is working to complete the work before the hotel reopens for 
business. 

• CAWD Source Control Inspector Holland examined and approved Chopstix 
restaurant for the installation of their grease trap on April 21, 2020. Chopstix is 
currently closed for business and when the inspection happened it was the 
owner and Mr. Holland inside.  Mr. Holland followed safety precautions (gloves, 
facemask, and distancing) during the inspection.  Chopstix is compliant.   

 
Restaurant Inspection Table 
Restaurant Compliant 

 
Reason for Non-
Compliance 

Comments 

Chopstix  Yes  Grease trap installed and 
compliant. 

Highlands Inn No  Hotel closed no business 
completing the plumbing 
work. 

 
Grocery Store/Delicatessen Inspection Table 
Grocery 
Store/Delicatessen 

Compliant 
 

Reason for Non-
Compliance 

Comments 

NONE    
 
Restaurant Compliance Table 

% Compliance Maintenance Mechanical 
Feb 2020 100 100 

March 2020 100 98 
April 2020 No inspections 99 

 
FUNDING 
 
N/A - Informational item only 

61



Project 
Number

Task Name Manager Start Finish Budget Status

Projects Implementation Plan Schedule Mon 4/2/18 Tue 6/30/26 $19,963,495.00

Treatment Plant Projects Mon 4/2/18 Tue 6/30/26 $13,874,495.00

18-01 Mech/Elec Rehab and Sludge Holding Tank 
Replacement Project

Treanor Mon 4/30/18 Thu 6/30/22 $10,616,000.00 In Final Design/CEQA Phase

18-02 Ops Building Historian and Reporting Foley Mon 4/2/18 Fri 5/29/20 $77,245.00 Final Testing Phase

18-05 PLC/SCADA Programming (PARTIAL 
RECLAMATION)

Foley Mon 10/8/18 Tue 7/13/21 $300,000.00 In Progress

18-08 Standby Power Reliability Project Treanor/Foley Mon 10/8/18 Wed 12/23/20 $730,000.00 In Design Phase

18-07 Digester No. 1 & Old No. 2 Purging and 
Cleaning

Waggoner Fri 3/15/19 Tue 6/30/20 $317,250.00 Digester No. 1 Complete / Ops to
Clean Remainder of Old Digester

No. 2

18-11 Microturbine Integration Project Treanor/Foley Tue 6/4/19 Tue 6/1/21 $510,000.00 Testing and Startup

19-01 Onsite Flood Mitigations (PARTIAL 
RECLAMATION)

Treanor Mon 7/1/19 Mon 6/29/20 $100,000.00 Implementation

19-10 1 Water Corrosion Control Waggoner Mon 7/1/19 Fri 6/12/20 $30,000.00 Pilot Testing Ionization System at
Chlorine Building

18-28 Perimeter Tree Plan and Implementation Treanor Mon 7/1/19 Tue 6/30/26 $120,000.00 In Study Phase

Cathodic Protection Testing Treanor Wed 4/1/20 Tue 3/30/21 $30,000.00 Inactive

Cart Charging and Parking Foley Wed 4/1/20 Wed 6/1/22 $50,000.00 Inactive

19-21 Carmel River FREE Mitigation Treanor Wed 7/1/20 Wed 11/30/22 $0.00 Developing Agreement with
County & Funding Coordination

19-19 Aeration Basin Improvements Waggoner Wed 7/1/20 Wed 6/30/21 $40,000.00 In 10% Vendors Research Phase

Plant Paving, Vault Lids, Drainage Treanor Thu 7/1/21 Wed 3/29/23 $50,000.00 Inactive

Chlorine Contact Pipe Gallery Repairs Treanor Thu 7/1/21 Fri 9/24/21 $44,000.00 Inactive

Treatment Plant Studies & O&M Manuals Treanor Fri 6/28/19 Wed 7/24/24 $270,000.00

19-14 BioWin Modeling Treanor Fri 6/28/19 Tue 3/31/20 $50,000.00 Completed

Coastal Hazards Monitoring Plan Treanor Fri 5/1/20 Fri 4/30/21 $35,000.00 Draft In Development

Long Term SLR Planning Treanor Mon 5/3/21 Mon 5/2/22 $35,000.00 Inactive

Online O&M Manual Treanor Wed 9/1/21 Wed 7/24/24 $150,000.00 Inactive

Reclamation Projects Fri 6/8/18 Wed 6/1/22 $590,000.00

18-26 RO Pretreatment Acid Tanks and Containme Treanor Fri 6/8/18 Tue 4/13/21 $415,000.00 On Hold

19-16 Tertiary MF/RO Standby Power Foley Mon 7/1/19 Fri 10/30/20 $0.00 Cost Benefit Analysis

Reclamation Line Cathodic Protection Testing Treanor Wed 7/1/20 Tue 12/1/20 $25,000.00 Inactive

Painting Project Treanor Wed 7/1/20 Tue 12/1/20 $75,000.00 Inactive

Reclamation Studies Treanor Mon 7/1/19 Wed 6/1/22 $75,000.00

Trussell MF/RO Performance Review Treanor Mon 7/1/19 Tue 3/31/20 $40,000.00 In Study Phase

Reclamation 15-Year Asset Management Assessment Treanor Thu 7/1/21 Wed 6/1/22 $35,000.00 Inactive

Collections Projects Mon 4/16/18 Thu 1/19/23 $6,089,000.00

19-02 Pretreatment Ordinance Lather Fri 11/15/19 Fri 5/29/20 $0.00 Initiated Review of draft by Source
Control and Legal Council 

Treatment Plant Projects

Mech/Elec Rehab and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement Project

ng Historian and Reporting

PLC/SCADA Programming (PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

Standby Power Reliability Project

gester No. 1 & Old No. 2 Purging and Cleaning

Microturbine Integration Project

Onsite Flood Mitigations (PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

1 Water Corrosion Control

Perimeter Tree Plan and Implementation

Cathodic Protection Testing

Cart Charging and Parking

Carmel River FREE Mit

Aeration Basin Improvements

Plant PaPlant Pa

Chlorine Contact Pipe Gallery

Treatment Plant Stu

BioWin Modeling

Coastal Hazards Monitoring Plan

Long Term SLR P

Reclamation Projects

RO Pretreatment Acid Tanks and Containment

Tertiary MF/RO Standby Power

Reclamation Line Cathodic Protection Testing

Painting Project

Reclamation Studies

Trussell MF/RO Performance Review

Reclamation 15-Year Asset M

Collections Projects

Pretreatment Ordinance

H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2
2019 2020 2021

62



Project 
Number

Task Name Manager Start Finish Budget Status

18-16 Highlands H2S Control Lauer Mon 4/16/18 Tue 6/30/20 $0.00 Installation of Long Term CN9
Dosing Equipment

18-17 Hatton Canyon Pipeline Replacement Project Lather Wed 5/23/18 Thu 10/15/20 $1,450,000.00 Project Awarded / Anticipated
Construction Start in June

18-18 Pump Station PLC/SCADA Replacement Foley/Lather Wed 7/18/18 Tue 6/30/20 $450,000.00 Construction In-Progress

19-07 Rio Road CIPP Lining Project Lather Mon 7/1/19 Fri 8/28/20 $1,340,000.00 Project Awarded / Preconstruction

19-03 Carmel Meadows Gravity Sewer 
Improvements

Lather Thu 8/1/19 Thu 1/19/23 $1,294,000.00 Design

19-13 Upper Rancho Canada Pipe Realignment Lather Mon 7/1/19 Fri 10/29/21 $1,450,000.00 Design

18-29 September Ranch Water and Sewer Lather Fri 3/1/19 Fri 7/30/21 $0.00 Water Study/On Hold

Assessment Districts/Annexations Lather Tue 7/3/18 Fri 12/31/21 $105,000.00

19-09 2020 Sphere of Influence Amendment and Annexation 
Proposal 

Lather Fri 3/15/19 Tue 6/30/20 $50,000.00 CEQA

18-21 Corona Road Assessment District Lather Thu 8/2/18 Tue 6/30/20 $0.00 Circulating Petition

19-05 Riley Ranch Annexation/Connection Lather Thu 8/2/18 Tue 6/30/20 $0.00 Pending Annexation

19-08 Carmel Valley Manor Sewer Lather Tue 7/3/18 Fri 12/31/21 $0.00 In Design By Owner

19-04 Carmel Highlands Sewer Collection System Expansion – 
Yankee Point and Otter Cove

Lather Wed 5/13/20 Tue 1/19/21 $55,000.00 Study Phase

ighlands H2S Control

Canyon Pipeline Replacement ProjectCanyon Pipeline Replacement Project

Station PLC/SCADA Replacement

Rio Road CIPP Lining Project

Carmel Meadows Gravity Sewer Improvem

Upper Rancho Canada Pipe Realignment

September Ranch Water and Sewer

Assessment Districts/Annexations

ere of Influence Amendment and Annexation Proposal 

rona Road Assessment District

y Ranch Annexation/Connection

Carmel Valley Manor Sewer

Carmel Highlands Sewer Collection System Expansion – Yankee Point and O

H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2
2019 2020 2021

63



 
Photo: Existing Headworks Motor Control Center to Be 

Replaced in Project 
  
Project Number: 18-01 
Project Name: WWTP - Elec/Mech Rehab & 

Sludge Holding Tank 
Replacement Project 

Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Treanor 
Status: In Final Design/CEQA Phase 
Project 
Description 

The WWTP Rehabilitation Phase 
II Project is a multi-area project at 
the WWTP aimed at mitigating 
risk of failure in the Influent 
Pump Station, Headworks, 
3W/Chlorine Analyzer Building, 
Effluent Building and Sludge 
Storage Tank. Most of the work 
involves replacing aged electrical 
and mechanical equipment in 
existing buildings. 

Department: Treatment 
Budget Status: Budget: $10,616,000   

Actual to Date: $841,376                 
Reclamation 
Share: 

Estimated at 4% of project cost. 
Actual share TBD based on 
Construction Costs. 

Other Entities: Pebble Beach Community 
Services District, CAWD/PBCSD 
Reclamation Project 

Permits Required: Coastal Commission Notification 
Challenges: Electrical Cutover Coordination 
Schedule: • Construction anticipated for 

2020 through 2021 
Consultants: Kennedy/Jenks Consultants 

(Design Engineer) 
Contractor: TBD 

 

 
Photo: Existing Server Hardware that will be replaced in 

Project 
  

Project Number: 18-02 
Project Name: Ops Building Historian and 

Reporting 
Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Foley 
Status: Final Testing Phase 
Project 
Description 

The report writer and historian 
system provide historical data for 
compliance and process reports. 
The existing system is connected 
to the legacy Supervisory Control 
and Data Acquisition (SCADA) 
system. This project will update 
the reporting hardware and 
software and integrate the system 
with the updated SCADA system. 
The update was necessary since 
the legacy system it was based on 
is no longer supported by 
Windows 7 platform.  

Department: Treatment 
Budget Status: Budget: $77,245   

Actual to Date:  $60,463                  
Reclamation 
Share: 

Estimated at 50%. 

Schedule: • Design to be completed in 
2019  

• Report and Historian 
configuration to be completed 
by June 2020.  

Consultants: WorkSmart Automation 
Contractor: N/A 

  

64



 
Photo: DAFT SCADA Overview 

  
Project Number: 18-05 
Project Name: Programmable Logic Controller (PLC) 

and Supervisory Control and Data 
Acquisition (SCADA) Programming 
Project 

Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Foley 
Status: In progress 
Project 
Description 

During the Phase 1 project a new 
SCADA software package from 
Inductive Automation was installed in 
parallel with the existing system. This 
project includes the migration of the 
remaining SCADA screens from the 
legacy system to the new system. 
The PLC code is also being updated to 
the CAWD standards that are being 
developed during this project. This 
project is necessary to replace 
obsolete software and hardware so 
that the automated controls, alarms, 
and reporting remain accurate and 
reliable.  

Department: Treatment 
Budget Status: Budget: $300,000 

Actual to Date: $274,079                    
Reclamation 
Share: 

Partial Reclamation  

Schedule: • Existing SCADA to be migrated in 
2020 

• SCADA screens will be revised for 
equipment that is replaced 
during Mechanical and Electrical 
Rehabilitation Project   

Consultants: Informative Controls 
Contractor: N/A 
 

 
Photo: Old Digester No. 2 

  
Project Number: 18-07 
Project Name: Digester No. 1 & Old Digester No. 

2 Purging and Cleaning 
Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Waggoner 
Status: Digester No. 1 Complete / Ops to 

Clean Remainder of Old Digester 
No. 2 

Project 
Description 

Digester No. 1 cleaning is 
completed. Old Digester No. 2 is 
planned to be demolished. Old 
Digester No. 2 will be drained by 
staff as it will not have debris 
buildup because it was a 
Secondary Digester (Treating 
supernatant from Digester No. 1).  

Department: Treatment 
Budget Status: Budget: $317,250 

Actual to Date: $306,612 
Reclamation 
Share: 

N/A 

Other Entities: N/A 

Permits Required: N/A 

Challenges: Unknown quantity of debris in 
Digester No. 1 

Schedule: • Digester 1 complete 
• Digester 2 to be cleaned by 

Ops in Spring 2020 
Contractor: Synagro WWT 

  

65



 
Photo: Example Trailer Standby Generator 

  
Project Number: 18-08 
Project Name: Standby Power Reliability Project 
Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Treanor/Foley 
Status: In Design Phase 
Project 
Description 

This project involves purchasing a 
trailer mounted 750kW generator 
to serve as a full capacity backup 
to the existing standby system in 
case the existing 750kW generator 
were to fail. The Main Switchgear 
would be reprogrammed to run off 
one generator with a standby 
(instead of the current split bus 
system). This would allow removal 
of the existing 450kW generator 
(which has obsolete controls and is 
not capable of powering the entire 
WWTP if the 750kW were to fail 
during a power outage). 

Department: Treatment 
Budget Status: Budget: $730,000 

Actual to Date: $5,000             
Reclamation 
Share: 

N/A 

Other Entities: N/A 
Permits 
Required: 

Air Board Permit 

Challenges: N/A 
Schedule: • Design to be completed in 

2019  
• Construction anticipated for 

2020 
Consultants: Beecher Engineering 

Contractor: TBD 
 

 
Photo: Existing Gas Conditioning System 

  
Project Number: 18-11 
Project Name: Microturbine Integration Project 
Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Treanor/Foley 
Status: Pre-Design / Installing New 

Controls for 65 kW Turbine 
Project 
Description 

Overhaul of existing gas 
conditioning system and controls 
for the microturbines. The existing 
gas conditioning system has been 
having continual mechanical 
failures which reduces the amount 
of time the Microturbines are in 
service. Significant overhaul of 
controls is needed to integrate the 
new 65kW turbine. CAWD is 
looking into a new gas 
conditioning system in case the 
existing system is not sufficient to 
treat the gas after the larger 65 
kW turbine is placed in service.   

Department: Treatment   
Budget Status: Budget: $510,000 

Actual to Date: $12,363  
Reclamation 
Share: 

N/A 

Other Entities: N/A 
Permits Required: Air Board Permit 
Challenges: Complexity of System 
Schedule: • Pre-Design to be completed in 

2019/2020 
• Final Design to be completed 

in 2020/2021-Construction 
anticipated for 2021 

Consultants: Engine System Integrated 
Contractor: TBD 

  

66



 
Photo: View H2S damage to Calle La Cruz wet well 

  
Project Number: 18-16 
Project Name: H2S Control at Calle La Cruz 

Pump Station  
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lauer 
Status: Installation of Long Term CN9 

Dosing Equipment   
Project 
Description 

H2S gasses are causing damage to 
the wet well and are a health 
hazard.  H2S readings of 700ppm 
have been observed. Staff have 
tried several different products 
and found CN-9 (Calcium Nitrate) 
to work.  

Department: Collections 
Budget Status: Budget: $0 

Actual to Date: $0 
Other Entities: N/A 
Permits Required: N/A 
Challenges: Getting the right dosage to 

remove odor.  Dealing with 
source of problem. 

Schedule: Ongoing 
Contractor: In-house to date 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Photo: View of the sewer lines to be replaced in Hatton 

Canyon 
  
Project Number: 18-17 
Project Name: Hatton Canyon Pipeline 

Replacement  

Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: D’Arcy & Harty selected as 

contractor. Contract signed and 
Bonds received. Pre-construction 
meeting 5/15/20. 

Project 
Description 

Replace 5,570 linear ft. of 60-year 
old 8” vitrified clay, bell & spigot 
pipeline within Hatton Canyon, 
Experienced over 3 spills in past 
20 years due to flooding.  Replace 
with 10” butt welded HDPE pipe 
that will be watertight & 
anchored into upgraded 
manholes.  This is designed to 
eliminate future spills. 

Department: Collection 
Budget Status: Budget: $1,450,000 

Actual to Date: $249,022 
Other Entities: State Parks; Fish & Wildlife, Army 

Corps, FEMA, CalOES 
Permits Required: State Parks Easement, Army 

Corps, U.S. Fish & Wildlife, State 
Fish & Wildlife, and Monterey 
County Encroachment Permit. 

Challenges: The project is located within a 
State Parks easement along the 
west bank of Hatton Creek.  
Existing access road is surrounded 
by riparian habitat. 

Schedule: Work required to be completed 
between June – October.  Plan to 
construct project in 2020. 

  

67



 
Photo: Pump station Control Panel- PLC and Operator 

Interface will be upgraded at Pump stations. 
  
Project Number: 18-18 
Project Name: Pump Station PLC/SCADA 

Replacement   
Project Location: Collections Pump Stations 
Project Manager: Foley 
Status: Construction In-Progress 
Project 
Description 

This project will replace the 
obsolete Programmable Logic 
Controllers at 7 sewage pump 
station that are no longer 
supportable due to lack of parts. 
The PLC programming will be 
updated, and the Supervisory 
Control and Data Acquisition 
Visualization screens will be 
updated to the Ignition SCADA 
software.   

Department: Treatment 
Budget Status: Budget: $450,000  

Actual to Date: $377,436                   
Reclamation 
Share: 

0% 

Schedule: • Construction complete in June 
30,2020 

Consultants: Frisch Engineering 
Contractor: Technical Systems, Inc  

 

 

 
Photo: Areas of Potential Annexation  

  
Project Number: 18-21,19-04,19-05,19-08,19-09 
Project Name: 2020 CAWD Sphere Of Influence 

(SOI) Amendment & Annexation 
Proposal 

Project Location: Collection System 
Project 
Manager: 

Lather 

Status: Finalizing Environmental 
Documents and prepared to 
circulate draft in June 2020. 

Project 
Description: 

The project will provide the 
opportunity for homes and 
businesses to get off septic systems 
and add approximately 350 
connections to the District at build-
out.  Interested areas include 
Corona Road, Riley Ranch, Carmel 
Valley Manor and Yankee Point & 
Otter Cove. 

Department: Collections 
Budget Status: Budget: $50,000 

Actual to Date: $14,764 
Permits 
Required: 

Environmental Review, LAFCO 
Annexation Approval 

Challenges: Getting homeowner groups to form 
an Assessment District to pay for 
infrastructure needed to connect to 
our sewer system. 

Schedule: In May 2020, circulate MND and 
apply for LAFCO Annexation in 
August 2020. 

Consultant: Denise Duffy & Associates 
  

68



 

 

 

Photo: Eucalyptus trees on South Side of Treatment 
Plant 

  
Project Number: 18-28 
Project Name: Perimeter Tree Plan and 

Implementation 
Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Treanor 
Status: In Study Phase 
Project 
Description 

Planning and landscaping around 
the treatment plant.  This will 
include looking into possibly 
replacing the non-native 
eucalyptus trees around the 
perimeter of the treatment plant 
with native tree species.  The 
project will start with a study and 
plan to determine costs, 
sequencing schedule, and visual 
impacts. The eucalyptus trees 
around the plant have ongoing 
maintenance costs which may be 
offset in the long term with 
different type of tree screening.  
Purpose is to improve security 
around plant perimeter.  

Department: Treatment 
Budget Status: Budget: $120,000 

Actual to Date: $2,897                 
Reclamation: N/A 
Other Entities: N/A 
Permits 
Required: 

Currently unknown (In Study 
Phase) 

Challenges: Time it will take for new trees to 
grow up that will fully screen 
treatment plant from view 

Schedule: • Study to occur in 2020 
Consultants: Scott Hall Landscape Design 

Contractor: TBD 
  

 
Photo: Existing totes used for Sulfuric Acid storage and 

Feed  
  
Project Number: 18-26 
Project Name: RO Pretreatment Acid Tanks and 

Containment 
Project Location: Reclamation – MF/RO 
Project Manager: Treanor 
Status: On Hold 
Project 
Description 

Code compliance upgrades for 
existing acid chemical storage and 
feed system used by Reclamation 
for enhancing RO recovery. 
Project includes code compliant 
secondary containment and 
separation of dissimilar chemicals. 

Department: Treatment 
Budget Status: Budget: $290,000  

Actual to Date: $68,506                
Reclamation 
Share: 

100% 

Other Entities: Reclamation Project 
Permits Required: Coastal Commission Notification 
Challenges: N/A 
Schedule: • Bid second half of 2020 

• Construction 2021 
Consultants: Trussell Technologies, Inc 
Contractor: TBD 

69



 
Photo: View new home development  

  
Project Number: 18-29 
Project Name: September Ranch Subdivision 
Project Location: Collection and Water System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: Water Study/On Hold 
Project 
Description 

New Subdivision with sewer and 
water services.  CAWD is not 
pursuing the water service at this 
time. 

Department: Collection 
Budget Status: Budget: Paid by Clear Peak 

Actual to Date: $35,000 
Other Entities: N/A 
Permits Required: N/A 
Challenges: Groundwater treatment and 

reliability concerns.  Sewer review 
has been completed. 

Schedule: Phase I is anticipated to start 
construction in 2020 if CAWD 
accepts water system 

Consultants: SRT Consultants - completed 
study of water system 

 

 

 

 

 
Photo: Old Flood Door in Headworks Basement 

  
Project Number: 19-01 

Project Name: Critical Process Onsite Flood 
Adaptations 

Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Treanor 
Status: Implementation 
Project 
Description 

There are a few areas of the 
WWTP that may be vulnerable to 
inundation during a 100-year river 
flooding event. Although the 
actual impact to the process in 
the event of inundation of these 
areas may be minor, it would be 
prudent to mitigate any possible 
impacts of flooding on the 
treatment process. The areas that 
could be further adapted to avoid 
flooding inundation are: 
Headworks Basement Flood Door, 
Influent Access Hatch, Secondary 
Effluent Diversion Structure 
Hatches, Chlorine Contact 
Channel Hatches, Waste Gas 
Burner Operations. 

Department: Treatment 
Budget Status: Budget: $100,000 

Actual to Date: $21,788                 
Reclamation 
Share: 

15% Reclamation 

Other Entities: Reclamation Project 
Permits Required: Coastal Commission Notification 
Challenges: N/A 
Schedule: • Planning in 2019 

• Modifications in 2020 
Consultants: N/A 
Contractor: TBD 

  

70



 
 
  
Project Number: 19-02  
Project Name: Update Pretreatment Ordinance 
Project Location: Pretreatment/Collections 
Project Manager: Lather/De Ocampo/Waggoner 
Status: Initiated Review of draft by Ed 

Waggoner and Ray DeOcampo.  
Legal has reviewed and provided 
comments. 

Project 
Description 

Prepare a Pre-Treatment 
Ordinance that is in compliance 
with the current standard of 
practice and the State Water 
Resources requirements. 

Department: Treatment 
Budget Status: Budget: $0 
Reclamation 
Share: 

N/A 

Other Entities: N/A 
Permits Required: N/A 
Challenges: None 
Schedule: • Complete Draft Ordinance for 

review in June 2020. 
• Board approval of Ordinance 

in August 2020. 
Consultants: None 
Contractor: None 

 

 
Photo: View gravity pipe in Carmel easement  

  
Project Number: 19-03 
Project Name: Carmel Meadows Pipeline 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: Working on Final design & 

Environmental Documents/permits 
Project 
Description: 

The project will replace 1300 feet 
of Ductile Iron Pipe (DIP) on an 
aerial span and eight manholes by 
constructing a small pump station 
at the end of Mariposa Drive. This 
project is located on an easement 
parallel to Ribera Road and was 
originally installed in the early 
1960's. 

Department: Collections 
Budget Status: Budget: $1,294,000 

Actual to Date: $154,138 
Permits 
Required: 

Coastal Permit and Environmental 
Review 

Challenges: Redirecting the sewer to the pump 
station without requiring booster 
pumps for individual houses. 

Schedule: Design FY20/21.  Construct 
FY21/22. 

Consultants: SRT Consultants 
Contractor: TBD 

  

71



 

  

 
Photo: View CIPP Liner being installed  

  
Project Number: 19-07 
Project Name: Rio Rd CIPP Lining project 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: Waiting for Permit approval from 

CalTrans to proceed with 
construction 

Project 
Description 

The rehabilitation of 4000 feet of 
24 to 27-inch diameter Asbestos 
Cement Pipe (ACP) trunk line that 
runs along Rio Road in Carmel. 
Lining existing pipe with (CIPP) 
Cured-In-Place Pipe. This pipe is in 
poor condition and is beyond its 
useful life.  It was identified as a 
priority for repair in the Asset 
Management Plan. 

Department: Collections 
Budget Status: Budget: $1,340,000 

Actual to Date: $45,815 
Permits 
Required: 

N/A 

Challenges: Traffic Control 
Schedule: Construct late Spring 2020. 
Consultant: Design by Kennedy/Jenks  

PSOMAS construction manager 

Contractor Insituform 

 
Photo: New #1 Water System where Corrosion System 

Project will be Installed 
  
Project Number: 19-10 
Project Name: WWTP – 1 Water Corrosion 

Control Project 
Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project 
Manager: 

Ed Waggoner 

Status: Pilot Test Ionization System at 
Chlorine Building 

Project 
Description 

The number 1 Potable Water 
Distribution System was installed 
in the early 1970’s when secondary 
processes were constructed at 
CAWD. The main piping is ductile 
iron pipe with service laterals of 
copper and galvanize pipes.  To 
prevent rust and pipe damage to 
the system, technology will be 
installed to extend the life of the 
piping system using chemicals or 
ionization equipment. 

Department: Treatment 
Budget Status: Budget: $30,000 

Actual to Date: $4,370          
Reclamation 
Share: 

Estimated at 1% of project cost.  

Other Entities: CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project 
Permits 
Required: 

None 

Challenges: Using New technologies (Lorex 
Company) 

Schedule: • On-line and Pilot Test will last 
for one year, December 2020 

Consultants: In house (Design Plant Engineer) 
Contractor: In house staff 

72



 

 

 

 

  

 
Photo: View of proposed sewer line realignment  

  
Project Number: 19-13 
Project Name: Upper Rancho Canada Pipe 

Realignment  
Project Location: Collection System 
Project 
Manager: 

Lather 

Status: Design  
Project 
Description 

This project relocates an existing 
sewer trunk line that serves the 
eastern most assets of the District 
and is located within the proposed 
County Park at Rancho Canada. The 
trunk line varies in size from 12 
inch to 8 inch and is made of Truss 
pipe material that was installed in 
the early 1970's.  The pipe is 
damaged in many locations, has 
capacity issues, and was identified 
as a priority in the Asset 
Management Plan. 

Department: Collection 
Budget Status: Budget: $1,500,000 

Actual to Date: $26,548 
Other Entities: Monterey Regional Park District 
Permits 
Required: 

Environmental Review 

Challenges: Providing a design that allows 
CAWD access to assets and is 
acceptable to the Park District. 

Schedule: Design FY 19/20.  Construct FY 
21/22. 

Consultants: MNS Engineering 
Rincon Environmental 

 
Photo: BioWin Model Screenshot 

  
Project Number: 19-14 
Project Name: Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Computer Model – BioWin 
Modeling 

Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project 
Manager: 

Treanor 

Status: Completed 
Project 
Description 

Development of a computer model 
to predict how changes in 
operations will effect water quality 
to inform process optimization 
activities aimed toward the goal of 
energy and cost savings 

Department: Treatment 
Budget Status: Budget: $50,000 
Reclamation 
Share: 

Actual to Date: $47,000 

Other Entities: N/A 
Permits 
Required: 

N/A 

Challenges: N/A 
Schedule: • Study to be completed in April 

2020 
Consultants: Greeley and Hansen 
Contractor: N/A 

73



 

 
Photo: Example Trailer Standby Generator  

  
Project Number: 19-16 
Project Name: Tertiary MF/RO Standby Power 
Project Location: Reclamation – MF/RO 
Project Manager: Foley 
Status: Cost Benefit Analysis 

Project 
Description 

The Reclamation Project facilities 
were not designed with standby 
power to run the facility in the 
event of a power outage. This 
project would add the ability to 
power the reclamation process 
with generator power. This is 
necessary due to the probability 
of increased outages due to fire 
prevention. Prolonged outages 
during the summer and fall 
months would have a significant 
negative impact on water 
production.   

Department: Treatment 
Budget Status: Budget: Unbudgeted 

Actual to Date: $0              
Reclamation 
Share: 

100% 

Other Entities: Reclamation Project 
Permits Required: N/A 
Challenges: N/A 
Schedule: • Pending Cost Benefit Analysis 
Consultants: Beecher Engineering 
Contractor: N/A 

 

 

 
Photo: Existing air diffuser system 

  
Project Number: 19-19 
Project Name: WWTP – Aeration Basin 

Improvements 
Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project 
Manager: 

Ed Waggoner 

Status: In 10% Vendors Research Phase 
Project 
Description 

The Aeration Basins 4A & 4B need 
to have additional diffusers 
installed to ensure the proper air 
(oxygen) transfer into the 
wastewater to support the aerobic 
microorganisms in the basins. 
Another needed improvement is to 
prevent short circuiting of flows in 
the basins. The installation of one 
curtain baffle in each tank will 
eliminate the short-circuiting issue. 

Department: Treatment 
Budget Status: Budget: $40,000.00 

Actual to Date: $0.00 
Reclamation 
Share: 

Estimated at 0% of project cost.  

Other Entities: CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project 

Permits 
Required: 

No permits as project is 
preventative maintenance project 

Challenges: Weather conditions and Scheduling 

Schedule: • Design to be completed in 
Spring 2020 

• Construction anticipated for 
Summer 2021 

Consultants: In house (Design Plant Engineer), 
Environetics for Baffles 

Contractor: TBD 
  

74



 

 

Photo: Carmel River Floodplain Restoration and 
Environmental Enhancement (CRFREE) 

  
Project Number: 19-21 
Project Name: Carmel River FREE Mitigation 
Project Location: Carmel River Lagoon 
Project Manager: Treanor 
Status: Developing Agreement with 

County & Funding Coordination 
Project 
Description: 

The CRFREE Project intends to 
create a new river channel in the 
Carmel River lagoon floodplain 
which will significantly impact 
existing wastewater pipelines 
which cross the lagoon. To fully 
mitigate impacts from CRFREE the 
pipelines which are currently 
crossing over a portion of the 
lagoon are proposed to be 
installed underground using 
Horizontal Directional Drilling 
construction methods.   

Department: Engineering 
Budget Status: Budget: Funded by County/Grants 

Actual to Date: $0              
Reclamation 
Share: 

0% 

Other Entities: Monterey County 
Permits 
Required: 

Coastal Commission, CA Fish and 
Wildlife, Army Corp of Engineers, 
RWQCB 

Challenges: Construction near Environmentally 
Sensitive Habitat and obtaining 
new Easement from State Parks 

Schedule: • Design and CEQA anticipated 
completion Summer 2021 

• Construction anticipated in 
Summer 2022 

Consultants: Design: Kennedy Jenks and Staheli 
Trenchless 
CEQA: Johnson Marigot 

Contractor: Pending 
 

 

 

75



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Ed Waggoner – Operations Superintendent 
 
Date:  May 28, 2020 
 
Subject: Monthly Operations Report – April 2020 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report- Informational only; no action required.  
 
 
DISCUSSION  
 

Plant Operation 
 

Treatment Plant: 
 

•    The treatment plant operations staff has continued finishing up projects and 
concentrating on Preventative Maintenance Work Orders during the month of 
April.  
 

•    (Project #18-07) Cleaning Old Digester #2 -Plant staff is continuing to remove 
the final 3 feet of solids, grit and other debris from the floor of old digester #2 
as operational time permits. 

 
•     Staff continues to perform well during the shelter in place order. Staff is 

practicing social distancing with other staff and contractors, driving to 
locations throughout the District in separate vehicles. Staff is educated on the 
best practices of Personal Protection Equipment (PPE) and personal hygiene. 
Staff has been cleaning and sanitizing buildings, equipment, and vehicles 
daily as part of their routine duties.   

 
Reclamation: 
 

  

76



•  CAWD Staff continues working with H2O Innovations on the remote 
communication and monitoring of the Micro Filtration and Reverse Osmosis 
systems.  
 

•  (Project # 18-24) Reclamation Sand Filter Integration Project staff is waiting for a 
second variable frequency drive unit to be installed on the second sand filter feed 
pump. 

 
•  Staff has continued preventative maintenance work on pumps, motors, and any 

equipment that needs maintenance for the Micro Filtration and Reverse Osmosis 
Systems. Staff turned off the Micro Filtration and Reverse Osmosis Systems on 
March 8 as the Forest Lake Reservoir was full at 115 million gallons. The 
Reclamation system continued to be off-line for the duration of the month due to 
wet climatic condition for most of March. 

 
Training: 
 

•   Staff is continuing online training at home from Target Solutions and Fred 
Pryor Seminars as Carmel Area Wastewater District implements its staffing 
policies for Action Plan Risk Level 3 for the COVID -19 virus at the treatment 
facility. 

 
Capital Improvement  

 
•   Staff continues to communicate with Plant Engineer, Patrick Treanor (CAWD), 

on the Electrical/Mechanical Rehabilitation and Sludge Holding Tank 
Replacement Project for the following areas: Influent Pump Station, 
Headworks, Blower Building, Chlorination/Dechlorination Building, Effluent 
Building, Digester No. 1, Digester No. 1 Control Building and Dewatering 
Building.  

 
Meetings Attended 

 
• Monterey County Water Awareness Committee meeting canceled due to the 

COVID-19 pandemic.  
 
Discharge Permit Violations 

 
•   No Reclamation Permit 93-72 discharge violations for the month of April 2020. 
            

77



•    No Violations of the NPDES (National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System) NPDES Number CA0047996, Order No. R3-2014-0012 were 
encountered during the month of April 2020. 

 
 
FUNDING 
 
N/A-Informational item only 
 
 
 

         
 

 

78



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent 
 
Date:  May 28, 2020 
 
Subject: Monthly Maintenance Report – April 2020 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report- Informational only; no action required.  
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Maintenance Projects in Progress 
 

• (Project #18-11) The microturbine system components have been test run 
individually. The last step is to complete testing of the safety interlocks 
connected to the new Programmable Logic Controller (PLC) and for Cal-
Microturbine to complete their startup checklist that was in progress before the 
chiller failed.  
 

• (Project #18-18) Installation of the Pump Station Programmable Logic Controller 
Control Panels is complete. Startup is scheduled for late May. After startup is 
completed then the old panels will be removed, and documentation updated. 
The project will then be closed.   
 

• A new double disc pump was installed for the food waste receiving system. The 
existing progressive cavity pump failed twice so it was replaced with a more 
robust pump. The new pump can handle larger solids and is also glass lined for 
increased durability.  

 
Upcoming Maintenance Projects 
 

• The main electrical meter panel at Bay and Scenic pump station will be replaced. 
The existing panel has fuses for protection. The new panel will include a modern 
circuit breaker. This will provide a safer and easier to maintain system. 

  

79



• Installation of a vent line from the high-pressure digester gas to the low-pressure 
side. This will provide engineering controls to safely vent the stored gas in the 
siloxane scrubber vessel to the flare. Parts have arrived and work is scheduled 
for early June.  

 
Staff Development 
 
No updates.  
 

Work Order Metrics 
Preventive Maintenance       
         
Total Work Orders Generated    252  
Total Work Orders Closed/Done    227  
Total Work Orders Still Open    25  
Percentage of Work Orders Completed    90.08%  
         
Corrective Maintenance        
 

          
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
  Emergency 3      
  Critical  8      
  Urgent 4      
  Routine 14      
         
         

FUNDING 
N/A- Informational item only 

80



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:                  Board of Directors 
 
From:             Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer 
 
Date:  May 28, 2020 
 
Subject:          General Engineering 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

Receive Report- Informational only; no action required. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 

This report is provided to update the Board on current engineering activities. 
 
General Engineering 
The Principal Engineer continues to work on projects related to the 2019 Mass 
Annexation, including Carmel Valley Manor and Corona Road.  Carmel Valley Manor 
(CVM) is continuing to work on their project to connect to the District and plan to 
construct in the Fall/Winter of 2020/21.  Once CVM’s engineers have completed the 60% 
plans, they will submit the plans to the Principal Engineer to review.   
 
The Principal Engineer has been working with Ray De Ocampo, Ed Waggoner, and 
legal staff to complete a draft Pretreatment Ordinance.  It is anticipated that the draft 
Ordinance will be provided to the review committee next month. Once the review 
committee has approved the proposed Ordinance, it will be brought to the Board for 
adoption. 
 
The Rio Road CIPP Lining project and the Hatton Canyon Pipeline Replacement 
projects are currently on schedule and moving forward with permits and submittals to 
be approved prior to construction. 
 
FUNDING 

N/A- Informational item only 

  

81



 

 

 

Resolutions 

 

82



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:               Board of Directors 

 
From:           Barbara Buikema, General Manager 

 
Date:            May 28, 2020 

 
Subject:         Sewer User Fee Rate Model Study 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve a resolution authorizing the 
General Manager to circulate a Request for Proposals for a Sewer User Fee Rate Model 
Study. 
 

 
DISCUSSION 
 
The District has utilized the rate model provided by the State Water Resources Control 
Board (SWRCB), latest version release date March 1998, for over twenty-five years.  
Because the District was built utilizing grant funds, we were required to implement a 
revenue program that complies with Section 204(b)(1) of the Clean Water Act, Federal 
and State Regulations and Policies of the SWRCB.  The revenue program guidelines 
issued by the SWRCB meet that requirement.  However, over time the Board has 
inquired as to the accuracy of the District’s rate modeling efforts and has requested a 
study that would review current practices and analyze both tiered rates and 
implementation of rate zones.  This Request for Proposals is an effort to ensure the 
accuracy of our rate setting process and to analyze areas where we should adjust our 
current practices. 
 
FUNDING 
This work would occur under the Fiscal Year 2020-21 budget for special studies with an 
estimated budget of $50,000.  
 
Attachment:  

• Request for Proposals for Sewer User Rate Model Study 

  

83



   
  Carmel   Area   Wastewater    District 
       P.O. Box 221428 Carmel California  93922  (831) 624-1248   FAX (831) 624-0811 
 

 
Barbara Buikema 
General Manager 

Ed Waggoner 
Operations Superintendent 

Robert R. Wellington 
Legal Counsel 

Board of Directors 

Gregory D'Ambrosio 
Michael K. Rachel 
Robert Siegfried 

Charlotte F. Townsend 
Ken White 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR SEWER USER FEE RATE MODEL STUDY 

May 28, 2020 
INTRODUCTION 
Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD) is seeking to retain a qualified 
professional consultant(s) or firm to prepare a Wastewater User Fee Study for 
the District.  This Request for Proposals (RFP) is expected to result in a contract 
(Professional Services Agreement) with a cost not to exceed the listed amount.  
The selected consultant shall perform the tasks specified in the “Scope of Work”.  
The consultant is encouraged to suggest additions or modifications to the scope 
that will enhance or clarify the study and such suggestions should be 
incorporated into the proposal.  
 
PURPOSE OF THE RFP 
The District is seeking proposals from qualified individuals or firms to perform 
a comprehensive wastewater sewer user fee study with a cost allocation plan.  
The intent of the study is to independently assess the District’s existing use rates 
and other fees charged by the District; and to develop equitable rates that are 
based on a cost of service analysis. 
 
BACKGROUND 
CAWD, organized July 8, 1908, is governed under the provisions of the Sanitary 
District Act of 1923, Health and Safety Code, Section 6400 et sq., as amended.  
The function of the District is to provide, operate and maintain sewage 
collection, treatment, and disposal facilities for the properties included within its 
boundaries and for certain contracted adjacent properties. The District also 
supplies reclaimed water to the Monterey Peninsula Water Management 
District. 
 
In March 1969, the District entered into an agreement with the Pebble Beach 
Community Services District (PBCSD) for treatment and disposal of sewage 

84



service delivered by PBCSD.  It was anticipated that the contract would account 
for approximately one third of the capacity of the District’s treatment plant.  
PBCSD began delivering sewage to the District in the fiscal year 1970-71 and 
reimburses the District for one third of its operating treatment and disposal 
expenses plus a portion of general and administrative expenses at an agreed 
upon annual fee for this service.  The agreement has been modified several times 
over the years and currently operates under the 1994 amended agreement. 
 
Under the same agreement, PBCSD also reimburses the District for one-third the 
cost of capital assets purchased or constructed for sewage treatment and 
disposal.  CAWD maintains sole ownership of the wastewater treatment plant 
and related capital assets.  PBCSD has only a contractual “right to use” one-third 
of the sewage treatment plant’s capacity under the terms of the most recent 
modified 1994 agreement and no rights to ownership of the District’s capital 
assets.   
 
CAWD provides collection, treatment, and disposal of wastewater for 
approximately 11,000 residents, businesses, and government within the District 
and treatment and disposal for an additional 4,500 residents in Del Monte Forest 
as provided for by contract agreement with PBCSD. 
 
The District treats wastewater from Carmel and surrounding areas providing 
advanced treatment to near drinking water standards.  Almost all treated 
wastewater is sent to Del Monte Forest where it is used to irrigate seven world 
famous golf courses including Pebble Beach, Poppy Hills, and Spanish Bay. 
 
The District is located on the Monterey Peninsula in Monterey County, 
California approximately 125 miles south of San Francisco.  The existing CAWD 
treatment plant is on the south bank of the Carmel River approximately one-
third of a mile west of the State Route 1 Bridge.  The administration office is 
located at 3945 Rio Road, Carmel. 
 
SCOPE OF WORK 

A. Rate and Fee Study 
a. Provide a comparison of current wastewater system costs against 

appropriate benchmarks. 
b. Provide a comparison of current and proposed wastewater rates 

and capacity charges against a representative set of public agency 

85



wastewater purveyors in the surrounding area and beyond the 
surrounding area. 

c. Evaluate the existing wastewater user fee structure for 
conformance with existing statutory regulations and make 
recommendations for any changes that are necessary to maintain 
compliance. 

i. Provide recommendations that may assist in more equity 
within the existing rate structure and justifications for any 
proposed changes. 

ii. Demonstrate that any alternative rate structure is easy to 
understand and administer and can be accommodated in 
Excel spreadsheet form. 

d. Recommend rate structures based on the following: 
i. Current and future cost of providing services in accordance 

with established and anticipated standards and regulations. 
ii. Projected demand of growing service area. 

iii. Age and condition of the wastewater system and projected 
replacements for infrastructure based on the Districts 
fifteen-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). 

iv. Funding requirements for all current and long-term 
liabilities and debt obligations. 

v. Impact of current and future wastewater and recycled water 
regulations. 

vi. Provide a methodology for annual inflationary adjustment 
in compliance with Proposition 218. 

vii. Cash flow and working capital 
viii. Projected revenues, operating expenses, and other funding 

source requirements with an understanding of the District’s 
historical trends 

ix. Impact of sea level rise on current facility and exposure at 
that location 

e. Evaluate the current capacity connection and make 
recommendations for any changes for “buy-in” and new capacity. 

f. Evaluate all current user fees  
g. Evaluate all current customer categories  
h. Evaluate District customers for potential tiered rate structure and 

potential “zones” to provide a more equitable allocation of costs. 
i. Provide a ten-year forecast of revenues, operation and 

86



maintenance expenses, capital improvement costs, identify a five-
year rate structure to ensure that adequate revenues will meet 
reserve policy levels, bond debt coverage requirements, and 
capital funding. 

i. Alternate levels of capital funding may be based on the 
Districts fifteen-year CIP with the ability to adjust the model 
for different levels of CIP funding. 

ii. Alternatives to include debt financing as compared to pay-
as-you-go scenarios to be considered. 

j. Provide a user-friendly computer rate model which the District 
can use for forecasting and planning.  This model should be 
capable of being updated with actual costs and users for future 
annual review of rates.  The model must have the ability to run 
CIP scenarios and quickly show impact on rates. 

i. Train District staff in the use of running “scenarios” that 
will provide a full understanding of how the rate model 
operates. 

k. The recommended rate structures shall be consistent with industry 
practice for utility rate making in California.  The rate study shall 
recommend a rate structure based upon standard rate practices 
that meet the criteria. 

l. The recommended rate structure shall be planned for five years. 
m. Prepare a draft and final report, supplied in electronic format 

which included the following items: 
i. A brief description of the District 

ii. Service area description, including population served 
iii. The source of supply as appropriate and projections on 

future growth and statement of consultant regarding 
sufficiency to meet demand 

iv. A brief description of the capital improvement program, a 
fifteen-year summary of proposed capital expenditures and 
a statement regarding reasonableness of those estimates 

v. A consideration of the impact of sea level rise on the 
District’s rate model 

vi. The revenue and expense projections for the District and 
each cost center 

vii. The rate comparison of existing revenues to meet the 
required needs of the District and discussion of 

87



recommended inflationary increases necessary to meet the 
future needs of the utility. 

n. Provide data supporting conclusions and observations made for 
each of the areas above and cite within the Study. 

o. Present the information to the Board of Directors and the Public at 
a workshop. 

 
RATE AND FEE STUDY TIMELINE 
The District wishes to implement any rate adjustments for the Fiscal Year 
beginning July 1, 2021.  Please provide a timeline for the proposed study.  The 
project timeline must incorporate necessary time and tasks for review of the rate 
study, development and mailing of the Proposition 218 notice, and adoption of 
new rates by the CAWD Board of Directors.  Adoption by the Board must 
include a first (March 2021) meeting and second meeting (June 2021) to be held 
at the regularly scheduled monthly Board meeting.  The District Board meetings 
are held on the last Thursday of the month. 
 
PROPOSAL FORMAT AND CONTENTS 
The proposal for the Sewer User Fee Study shall address all of the scope of work 
items in this request for proposal and be submitted per the following 
instructions. 
 
1. General: 

a. Proposal should be submitted electronically to downstream@cawd.org 
b. Title page should show the request for proposal’s subject, the firm’s 

name, the name address and telephone number of a contact person, and 
the date of the proposal 

c. The title page should indicate “Proposal for Sewer User Fee Study” 
d. Include a table of contents 
e. Include a signed letter briefly stating the firms understanding of the work 

to be done, the commitment to perform the work within the time, a 
statement why the firm believes itself to be best qualified to perform the 
engagement 

f. Include a statement that the proposal is firm and will be valid for ninety 
(90) days 

g. Include a signature of a person authorized to bind consultant to the terms 
of the proposal 

 

88

mailto:downstream@cawd.org


 
2. Qualifications and References: 

a. Qualifications of the firm: 
i. Identify the size of your firm and location of the office from which 

the work will be conducted. 
ii. Qualifications of Professional Staff – identify the key engagement 

partners, managers, and other staff members who would be 
assigned to conduct the Study and indicate their qualifications. 

iii. Subcontractors – Please clearly indicate whether subcontractors 
will be used in fulfilling the proposal.  If the firm plans to use 
subcontractors, please provide an overview of the firm, project 
involvement, and qualifications of staff. 

b. References: 
i. Please provide a list of consulting experiences for agencies similar 

in type and size to CAWD. 
ii. List three (3) client references for work of similar size and scope of 

service as contained in this request for proposals. Include the 
following information for each reference: 

• Customer name 
• Contact name and title 
• Telephone and email 
• Street address, State, Zip code 
• Description of services 

 
CAWD reserves the right to contact each of the references listed for 
additional information regarding your firm’s qualifications. 

 
EVALUTION OF PROPOSAL AND NEGOTIATIONS 
All proposals submitted will be reviewed by an evaluation panel consisting of 
the CAWD Budget Committee.  At the completion of the proposal review, the 
panel may elect to invite the top scoring firms to make a presentation at no cost 
to the District.  The District may negotiate with that firm to determine final 
pricing and contract form.  There will be no public opening and reading of bids. 
 
Proposals will be evaluated on the following criteria: 

• Qualifications of the firm 
• Qualifications of the personnel 
• Related experience 

89



• References 
• Ability to understand the District’s needs 
• Completeness of response 
• Reasonableness of cost and price 
• Availability schedule 

 
CONDITIONS AND STIPUTLATIONS 
The District reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, cancel all or part of 
this RFP, and waive any non-material irregularities or informalities and to 
request additional information and clarification regarding any particular service 
from the proposing firms. By requesting proposals, the District is in no way 
obligated to select any proposal or pay expenses of the proposing firms in 
connection with the preparation or submission of a proposal. The District 
reserves the right to reject any firm for any reason. The proposal should be the 
best effort possible by the firm, since the District reserves the right to award the 
contract with no further negotiations. Conversely, the District reserves the right 
to negotiate with the successful proposer any additional terms and conditions 
not contained in their proposal, which are in the best interest of the District or to 
otherwise revise the scope of this RFP. All proposals, whether accepted or 
rejected, shall become the property of the Carmel Area Wastewater District. All 
proposals received become public records. The District’s decision to award a 
contract will be based on many factors, including but not limited to service, cost, 
experience, and ability to deliver, or for any other reason deemed by the District 
to be in the best interest of the District. No single factor, such as cost, will 
determine the final decision to award. This RFP and the firm’s response, 
including all promises, warranties, commitments, and representations made in 
the successful proposal, shall become binding contractual obligations, and will 
be incorporated by reference in the final agreement between the Carmel Area 
Wastewater District and the selected firm. All terms and conditions not 
specifically identified as exceptions will be considered acceptable to the 
Consultant. 
 
ESTIMATED SCHEDULE 
Request for Proposals (RFP) Release:    June 2020 
Written Inquiry Deadline      July 1st, 2020 
Proposals Due:       July 15th, 2020 
Board of Director’s Contract Approval    August 27th, 2020 
 

90



POINT OF CONTACT 
All questions shall be directed to Barbara Buikema, General Manager at 
buikema@cawd.org or by phone at (831) 624-1248. 
 
Proposals must be received by the deadline of July 15th, 2020, 4:00 p.m.   
Postmark will be date stamp of electronic email. 
 
Thank you for your interest in working with the Carmel Area Wastewater 
District for this service.  We look forward to receiving your proposal. 
 
 
 
 
 
Barbara Buikema 
General Manager 
Carmel Area Wastewater District 
3945 Rio Road 
Carmel, CA  93922 
 
If there are any questions regarding this request for qualifications, please contact 
Barbara Buikema at (831)624-1248 or email her at buikema@cawd.org . 
 

91

mailto:buikema@cawd.org
mailto:buikema@cawd.org


RESOLUTION 2020-26 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO CIRCULATE A 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR A SEWER USER FEE RATE MODEL STUDY 
-oOo- 

 

WHEREAS, the District is interested in undertaking a Sewer User Fee Rate Study 

to analyze the existing rate model for accuracy and examine other areas for refinement or 

improvements; and 

WHEREAS, the District is interested in finding qualified consultants to provide 

services to study sewer user fee models. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of Carmel Area 

Wastewater District, hereby authorizes the General Manager to circulate a “Request for 

Proposals” among consultants that develop sewer user fee rate model studies in order to 

evaluate and select a qualified consultant.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on May 28, 2020. 

AYES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSTAIN:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

 

______________________________________________ 

      President of the Board 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________________ 

Secretary to the Board 

92



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
 
Date:  May 28, 2020 
 
Subject: Reclamation Budget 2020-21 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt a resolution approving the 
CAWD/PBCSD Fiscal Year 2020-21 Reclamation Project Budget. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project Fiscal Year 2020-21 Budget was approved at 
Technical Advisory Committee group level on May 6, 2020. Final approval was given 
by the Reclamation Management Committee (RMC) at its May 13, 2020 meeting. A copy 
of the Project 2020-21 Budget is attached. 
 
Items approved by the RMC are brought to CAWD or PBCSD Board, as appropriate, for 
approval and any applicable resolution. 
 
 
FUNDING 
 
All Reclamation Project funding is covered by the Project or by the Pebble Beach 
Company and Independent Reclaimed Water Users Group, as project guarantors. 
 
 
Attachment: 

• CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project 2020-21 Budget 

  

93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-27 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE CAWD/PBCSD FISCAL YEAR 2020-21 
RECLAMATION PROJECT BUDGET 

 
-oOo- 

 

WHEREAS, the attached CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Budget was approved at the Technical Advisory Committee group level and final 

approval was given by the Reclamation Management Committee (RMC) at its May 13, 

2020 meeting; and 

WHEREAS, items approved by the RMC are brought to the CAWD or PBCSD 

Board, as appropriate, for approval and any applicable resolution. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District that it does hereby adopt the attached CAWD/PBCSD 

Reclamation Project Fiscal Year 2020-21 Budget. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on May 28, 2020, by the following vote: 

AYES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT:    BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSTAIN:    BOARD MEMBERS: 

 

     ________________________________________________ 

     President of the Board 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 
Secretary of the Board 

127



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer 
 
Date:  May 28, 2020 
 
Subject: Project #19-09 - 2020 Carmel Area Wastewater District Sphere of Influence 

(SOI) Amendment and Annexation Proposal (proposed project) - 
 Draft Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) pursuant to the  
 California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve filing a notice of intent and 
circulation of a Draft Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) for public comment for the 
annexation of various parcels to the District pursuant to the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The project is an annexation of parcels that are located in areas of the County of 
Monterey where there has been interest in connecting to CAWD’s sewer system. The 
project would amend CAWD’s jurisdictional boundaries in order to allow property 
owners to more easily apply for sewer service without individually applying for 
property annexations through the Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO). 
 
The proposed annexation areas include portions of Carmel Valley (Area 1), the Larsen 
property (Area 2), Corona Road (Area 3), and Yankee Point & Otter Cove (Area 4).  The 
Carmel Valley Manor sewer extension and parcels that could feasibly connect to their 
future trunk line are included in Area 1. The limits of the annexation were based on 
District Board comments/review, Monterey County Environmental Health staff, 
conversations with LAFCO staff and requests for annexation or service by proponents 
of annexations in Areas 1-4.  The attached figures show the existing service area and 
proposed extent of the annexation.  
 
District staff have worked with Denise Duffy and Associates (DDA) to complete the 

  

128



initial study and the mitigated negative declaration in conformance with CEQA 
requirements and in anticipation of moving forward with annexation through LAFCO. 
CAWD is acting as the Lead Agency pursuant to CEQA Guidelines §15050(a) and 
LAFCO is responsible for approving the proposed amendment of jurisdictional 
boundaries. In addition, the areas within the Coastal Zone (Areas 2-4) will require that 
the District amend the Coastal Development Permit for the treatment plant in order to 
be added to our District.   
 
A copy of the Draft Mitigated Negative Declaration is available to review upon request 
and will be available on the CAWD website at the initiation of the public review period. 
 
In order to initiate public and regulatory review of the proposed annexation, as 
required by CEQA, a Notice of Intent to adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration and 
circulation of the Draft Mitigated Negative Declaration for a 30-day public comment 
and regulatory review period is required. The 30-day public review period is proposed 
from June 1, 2020 to June 30, 2020 during which period comments concerning the 
project and analysis contained in the document will be solicited.  
 
NEXT STEPS  
 
After the review period is completed, any comments will be addressed and/or 
incorporated into the MND and a Final Administrative Draft will be completed and 
brought to the Board for consideration of approval and adoption.  At that time, staff 
will request approval to apply to LAFCO for the annexation. 
 
FUNDING 
 
The costs of annexation will be included in the connection fees for the parcels being 
annexed in the future. 
 
Attachment:  

• Annexation Map

129



 

130



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-28 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING A NOTICE OF INTENT TO ADOPT A 

MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION FOR THE  
2020 CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT SPHERE OF INFLUENCE (SOI) 

AMENDMENT AND ANNEXATION PROPOSAL - FOR PROJECT #19-09 
-oOo- 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 6 (§ 15072) of the California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA) guidelines, The Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD), as Lead 

Agency, intends to adopt a mitigated negative declaration for the 2020 Carmel Area 

Wastewater District Sphere Of Influence (SOI) Amendment And Annexation Proposal; 

and  

WHEREAS, the Notice of Intent to Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration will 

be published in the Pine Cone, posted on and off the site; filed with the County Clerk’s 

office and noticed in additional ways as required; and  

WHEREAS, the Mitigated Negative Declaration will be submitted to the State 

Clearing House for review by State agencies. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District, does hereby approve issuing a Notice of Intent to Adopt a 

Mitigation Negative Declaration for the 2020 CAWD Sphere of Influence Amendment 

and Annexation Proposal. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on May 28, 2020 by the following vote: 

AYES: BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSTAIN:  BOARD MEMBERS: 
        
    _____________________________ 

       President of the Board 
ATTEST: 

____________________________ 

Secretary to the Board 

131



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:   Board of Directors  
 
From:   Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer 
 
Date:  May 28, 2020 
 
Subject:  Project #19-21 - Carmel River Floodplain Restoration and Environmental 

Enhancement (CRFREE) Mitigation Pipeline Undergrounding Project – 
Kennedy/Jenks Consultants 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt a resolution authorizing the 
General Manager to execute a Professional Services Agreement with Kennedy Jenks 
Consultants for developing the engineering design for the CRFREE Mitigation Pipeline 
Undergrounding Project in an amount not to exceed $317,097. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
To facilitate the Carmel River Floodplain Restoration and Environmental Enhancement 
(CRFREE) Project CAWD applied for funding with the California Coastal Conservancy 
to conduct design and environmental work associated with relocating existing CAWD 
pipeline infrastructure that would otherwise be impacted by the CRFREE Project. At the 
January 2020 CAWD board meeting the CAWD Board of Directors approved a grant 
application requesting $750,000 to complete design and environmental work associated 
with relocating the existing pipelines. The requested grant amount was awarded on 
May 5th, 2020 by the Coastal Conservancy Board of Directors. Now that outside funding 
has been awarded, CAWD staff intends to move forward with the design and 
environmental work needed to relocate the pipelines in an effort to support the 
implementation of the CRFREE project. 
 
Kennedy Jenks Consultants has proposed the design effort based on relocating the 
CAWD pipelines using trenchless horizontal directional drilling construction methods. 
Kennedy Jenks is teaming with Staheli Trenchless on this project. Staheli Trenchless 
specializes in horizontal directional drilling design and provides valuable technical 
expertise to the overall project implementation.  

 

 

132



FUNDING 
     

The funding for the engineering design for the CRFREE Mitigation Pipeline 
Undergrounding Project would come from the funds allocated in the $750,000 grant 
approved by the California Coastal Conservancy. CAWD would be required to carry 
the upfront project payments and retainage until grant disbursements are received. 
Managing the cash flow would be accomplished using the Capital Reserve Fund. 
 
Outside funding source for actual construction work for this project has yet to be 
determined. 
 
Attachment: 

• Proposal – Kennedy Jenks Consultants 
 

133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-29 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 

$317,097 FOR DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE CARMEL RIVER FLOODPLAIN 
RESTORATION AND ENVIRONMENT ENHANCEMENT PROJECT (CRFREE) 
MITIGATION PIPELINE UNDERGROUNDING PROJECT– KENNEDY JENKS 

CONSULTANTS - FOR PROJECT #19-21 
 

-oOo- 
 
 WHEREAS, a grant has been awarded to CAWD to fund completion of design and 

environmental work for relocating existing CAWD pipelines that would be negatively impacted 

by the CRFREE Project; and 

 WHEREAS, Kennedy Jenks Consultants and their subconsultant Staheli Trenchless has 

demonstrated expertise in the field of services required. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel Area 

Wastewater District that it does hereby authorize the General Manager to enter into a professional 

services agreement, with a not to exceed amount of $317,097, with Kennedy Jenks Consultants for 

design services for the CRFREE Mitigation Pipeline Undergrounding Project. 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District duly held on May 28, 2020, by the following vote: 

 AYES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 

 NOES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 

 ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSTAIN:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

        _____________________________ 
        President of the Board 
 
ATTEST: 
__________________________ 
  Secretary of the Board 

149



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:   Board of Directors  
 
From:   Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer 
 
Date:  May 28, 2020 
 
Subject:  Project #19-21 - Carmel River Floodplain Restoration and Environmental 

Enhancement (CRFREE) Mitigation Pipeline Undergrounding Project – 
Johnson Marigot Consulting LLC 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt a resolution authorizing the 
General Manager to execute a Professional Services Agreement with Johnson Marigot 
Consulting LLC for environmental consulting services for the CRFREE Mitigation 
Pipeline Undergrounding Project in an amount not exceed $168,815. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
To facilitate the Carmel River Floodplain Restoration and Environmental Enhancement 
(CRFREE) Project CAWD applied for funding with the California Coastal Conservancy 
to conduct design and environmental work associated with relocating existing CAWD 
pipeline infrastructure that would otherwise be impacted by the CRFREE Project. At the 
January 2020 CAWD board meeting the CAWD Board of Directors approved a grant 
application requesting $750,000 to complete design and environmental work associated 
with relocating the existing pipelines. The requested grant amount was awarded on 
May 5th, 2020 by the Coastal Conservancy Board of Directors. Now that outside funding 
has been awarded, CAWD staff intends to move forward with the design and 
environmental work needed to relocate the pipelines in an effort to support the 
implementation of the CRFREE project. 
 
Johnson Marigot Consulting has developed a comprehensive proposal to complete a 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Initial Study and Mitigated Negative 
Declaration, which includes not only extensive biological evaluation of the sensitive 
habitat around the lagoon, but also a significant effort to evaluate the potential for 

 

 

150



archaeological resources on the West side of the lagoon.  
 
FUNDING 

     
The funding for the engineering design for the CRFREE Mitigation Pipeline 
Undergrounding Project would come from the funds allocated in the $750,000 grant 
approved by the California Coastal Conservancy. CAWD would be required to carry 
the upfront project payments and retainage until grant disbursements are received. 
Managing the cash flow would be accomplished using the Capital Reserve Fund. 
 
Outside funding source for actual construction work for this project has yet to be 
determined. 
 
Attachment: 

• Proposal – Johnson Marigot Consulting, LLC. 
 

151



 
 

 
 
 
Mr. Patrick Treanor              January 21, 2020 
Plant Engineer 
Carmel Area Wastewater District 
P.O. Box 221428 
Carmel, California 93922  
 
Regarding:  CRFREE Mitigation Pipeline Undergrounding Project (2020-002) 

Proposal for Environmental Consulting Services  
 
Dear Mr. Treanor: 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit a proposal for environmental consulting service 
for Carmel Area Wastewater District’s (CAWD’s) Carmel River Floodplain Restoration and 
Enhancement Project (CRFREE) Mitigation Pipeline Undergrounding Project (project).  I 
have enclosed a statement of work for tasks required to complete the project 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) mitigated negative declaration, and additional tasks in 
support of project entitlement. Tasks included in the statement of work include: 
 

General Tasks 
1. Regulatory Support 

Field Survey Reports 
2. Wetland Delineation 
3. Special Status Plant Survey and Report 
4. Native Tree Survey Report 

CEQA Document and Supporting Analysis 
5. Mitigated Negative Declaration 
6. Cultural Resource Consultation and Report 
7. Biological Resource Report 
8. Hydrology and Rater Quality Support (Optional Task) 

Permits Applications and Supporting Documents 
9. Pre-Construction Notification – Section 404 of Clean Water Act (CWA) 
10. Biological Assessment 
11. 401 Certification Application – Section 401 of CWA 
12. Section 1602 Streambed Alteration Agreement Application 
13. Coastal Zone Development Permit Application 
14. Revegetation Plan  

152



 
Estimates for each of the below tasks assumes project engineering support to be provided 
by CAWD.  Electronic copies for each report will be provided to the client upon completion.  
Hard or electronic copies of each report will be provided to relevant agencies, based on 
individual agency requirements.  The below tasks provide estimates for initial applications 
to agencies, including one edit based on client feedback, but do not include response to 
agency based on the finding of an incomplete application.  Each task represents a “not to 
exceed value”.  These estimates will not be exceeded without written approval from CAWD. 
Below tasks are related, and therefore estimates are based on the understanding that the 
company will be providing / managing all of the below work.  If individual tasks are 
omitted, new estimates may be required.  
 
I am available to meet with you, or with other members of your team to discuss details or 
questions you may have.  Please contact me at (415) 500-1231 at your earliest 
convenience. 
 

Respectfully, 

       
 

Lauren Bingham 
Johnson Marigot Consulting, LLC 
 

 
Enclosure 1:  Statement of Work – Regulatory Support  
Enclosure 2: 2020 Rate Sheet 

 
 

153



ENCLOSURE 1 
Statement of Work – Regulatory Support 

 

154



 
 
 

Statement of Work: AS- NEEDED Environmental Services 
 
Services provided below are to be conducted on an hourly-rate basis and at the direction of 
CAWD (Client).  Estimates for each of the below tasks assumes project engineering support 
to be provided by the Client.  Electronic copies for each report will be provided to the Client 
upon completion.  Hard or electronic copies of each report will be provided to relevant 
agencies, based on individual agency requirements.  The below tasks provide estimates for 
initial applications to agencies, including one edit based on Client feedback, but do not 
include response to agency based on the finding of an incomplete application. Each task 
estimate is based on an average rate for Johnson Marigot Consulting, LLC (Company) staff 
of $165/hour.  Below tasks are related, and therefore estimates are based on the 
understanding that the company will be providing / managing all of the below work.  If 
individual tasks are omitted, new estimates may be required.  
 
Description of Services 
 

1. Regulatory Support 
 

Service may include the following: management of California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) document revisions and response to comments; managing project Clean 
Water Act (CWA) and Rivers and Harbors Act (RHA) permitting and associated 
consultations and permitting under the National Historic Preservation Act (NHPA), 
Endangered Species Act (ESA), and Coastal Zone Management Act (CZMA); 
coordination with federal (U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps), U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife Service (USFWS), National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS)) and state 
(California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW), Regional Water Quality Control 
Board (RWQCB), California Coastal Commission (CCC)) natural resource regulatory 
agencies to obtain project authorizations; coordination with project stakeholders, 
including, but not limited to, Caltrans, California State Parks, Monterey County, and 
the State Lands Commission. Supplemental agency coordination, including 
attendance of agency meetings (including minutes) and supplemental written 
documents and/or memorandums. Estimate assumes 120 hours of labor for as-
needed services.  

 
Not to Exceed: $ 20,000 

+ Expenses 
 

 

155



2. Wetland Delineation 
 

Update 2017 preliminary jurisdictional delineation (PJD) report to include revised 
project boundary required for updated project methods (horizontal directional 
drilling (HDD). Work would include a field evaluation and preparation of an updated 
PJD report. Updated maps depicting the extent and location of waters and wetlands 
of the U.S. jurisdictional pursuant to CWA and RHA would be provided.  Scope of 
work includes attending a field visit with agency staff and providing support to 
Corps to verify presence / absence of jurisdictional waters of U.S. and State. This 
investigation of potentially jurisdictional waters of the U.S. will follow the methods 
described in Corps (Environmental Laboratory 1987), supplemented with guidance 
as directed by the Regional Supplement to the Corps of Engineers Wetland 
Delineation Manual: Arid West Region.  Estimate includes 2 site visits and assumes 
25 hours of report preparation and analyses. 
 
 
Deliverable: Updated PJD report and associated wetland delineation map.  

 
Not to Exceed: $7,425 

+ Expenses 
 

3. Special Status Plant Survey and Report  
 

As the project boundary has changed, to address CEQA requirements and 
anticipated requests from the USFWS and the CDFW, special-status (rare) plant 
surveys will be conducted. Specifically, 3 appropriately timed site visits will be 
completed and a report documenting the findings will be prepared. Estimate 
includes 3 site visits (including reference site visits, per survey protocols) assumes 
50 hours of report preparation and analyses. 
 
Deliverable: Botanical Resources Letter Report summarizing the results of protocol 
level surveys special-status plant species.  

 
Not to Exceed: $8,250 

+ Expenses 
 

156



4. Native Tree Survey Report 
 

As the project boundary has changed, the LSA September 2018 Arborist Letter 
Report would be updated.  Consistent with the previous work the report will include 
a description of the methods, a tree map, tables summarizing species observed, a 
discussion of alternative methods that could reduce impacts to protected trees, and 
project specific mitigation measures. Estimate assumes 1 site visit and 30 hours of 
report preparation. 
 
Deliverable: Updated Arborist Letter Report.  

 
Not to Exceed: $6,600 

 
5. Mitigated Negative Declaration (estimate provided by Grassetti 

Environmental) 
 

Grassetti Environmental will complete an Initial Study consistent with CEQA 
guidelines and a Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND). Work would include update 
of the existing MND to include review of the revised project.  CAWD would act as 
lead agency. Review and summarize existing and on-going regulatory entitlement 
documents, site assessment documents, and site studies to evaluate potential effects 
of proposed project pursuant to CEQA public interest review factors. This scope of 
work includes preparation of an administrative draft initial study; preparation of a 
public draft initial study; preparation of draft and final responses to public 
comments on the initial study and mitigation and monitoring program; and 
attendance of one meeting with applicant (additional meetings will be available as 
optional tasks). Preparation of an air quality and greenhouse gas study and a noise 
study is also included in this task. Additional materials may be required including 
engineering reports (civil, grading, storm water, etc.) and technical studies provided 
by others.  
 
Company will review and manage all subcontractor deliverables to ensure they are 
consistent with project design, construction methods, the CEQA Initial Study and 
MND, and applicable natural resource laws and regulations. 
 
Deliverable: Administrative/Public Draft Initial Study, Draft/Final Response to 
Public Comment, Mitigation Monitoring Program, Draft/Final MND. 

 
Not to Exceed: $ 26,290 

+Expenses 
 
 

157



6. Cultural Resource Consultation and Report (estimate provided by Pacific 
Legacy) 

 
To meet the requirements set forth in CEQA guidelines, Pacific Legacy will perform 
consultation with Native American stakeholders. Task includes conducting 2 site 
visits, one with State Parks and one with potential Native American tribes identified 
by State Parks and the Corps. Pacific Legacy will also revise the draft memorandum 
prepared in 2019 into an Archaeological Survey Report to satisfy Section 106 of the 
NHPA report for Corps and State Parks. This report will address the potential effects 
the proposed HDD construction methodology will have on CA-MNT-114 and 
potential measures mitigate those effects. The task includes agency coordination, 
primarily the Corps and State Parks, and 2 rounds of report review. Preparation of a 
Finding of Effect for the Corps and State Parks which will have to go to State Historic 
Preservation Office (SHPO) for concurrence.  Coordination with the Corps and State 
Parks regarding site eligibility for the National Register of Historic Places and the 
California Register of Historical Resources. This task assumes that the eligibility 
determination for CA-MNT-114 will be accepted by the Corps and State Parks and 
Phase II testing will be not be required. 
 
Company will review and manage all subcontractor deliverables to ensure they are 
consistent with project design, construction methods, the CEQA MND, and 
applicable natural resource laws and regulations. 

 
Deliverable: Final records search documentation, Native American, Corps and State 
Parks coordination log, and Archaeological Survey Report.  

 
Not to Exceed: $20,500 

 
7. Biological Resource Analysis 

 
As the project boundary and project description has changed, the biological 
resource analysis requires update. Analysis will be updated with new project 
description, revised project boundary, and revised analysis to reflect proposed HDD 
construction methods compliant with CEQA. Updates to figures and maps are 
included in this task. Estimate assumes 55 hours of report preparation and analyses. 
 
Deliverable: Biological Resource Analysis.  

 
Not to Exceed: $9,000 

 

158



8. Hydrology and Water Quality Support (Optional Task; estimate provided by 
ENGEO) 
 
ENGEO to update the hydrology and water quality section of the MND to assess the 
revised project and to provide mitigation measures to ensure conformance with 
CEQA and any local general planning documents.  
 
Company will review and manage all subcontractor deliverables to ensure they are 
consistent with project design, construction methods, the CEQA MND, and 
applicable natural resource laws and regulations. 

 
Cost Estimate: $ 11,000 

 
9. Pre-Construction Notification – Section 404 of CWA 

 
Prepare and submit a pre-construction notification (PCN) requesting authorization 
of proposed wok under the Corps’ nationwide permitting program. Work includes 
assisting the Corps, as needed, to facilitate the completion of required consultation 
with the SHPO and Native American tribes in compliance with the NHPA Section 106 
consultation (report prepared in task 6). Assist the Corps, as needed, in completing 
an ESA section 7 consultation with the USFWS and/or NMFS (report prepared in 
task 10). Estimate assumes 60 hours of document preparation and one revision 
based on client edits.  

 
Deliverable: PCN application package. 

 
Cost Estimate: $ 10,000 

 
10. Biological Assessment (BA) Document 

 
Preparation of document compliant with requirements established under the ESA. 
BA document will be designed to provide necessary information to both the lead 
agency (Corps) and the USFWS/NMFS to support an ESA section 7 consultation. The 
BA will include summary of special status plant survey (task 3). If it is determined 
necessary by USFWS/NMFS, species specific surveys may be required. Estimate 
assumes 60 hours of document preparation and one revision based on client edits. 
 
Deliverables: Biological Assessment Report. 
 

Not to Exceed: $ 10,000 
 

159



11. 401 Certification Application – Section 401 of CWA 
 

Prepare a CWA Section 401 Water Quality Certification (401 Cert) application to be 
submitted to the RWQCB for fill of waters of the state. Please note, there will be a fee 
associated with the application (not included in estimate). Estimate assumes 50 
hours of document preparation and one revision based on client edits. 
 
Deliverable: 401 Cert application. 
 

Not to Exceed: $ 8,250 
 

12.  Section 1602 Streambed Alteration Agreement Application 
 

Company will prepare a Streambed Alteration Agreement application, to be 
submitted to the CDFW, for the revised project. Company will prepare exhibits 
related to avoidance of impacts to CDFW jurisdiction (i.e., will assist the project 
engineer in frac-out plan preparation). Please note, there will be a fee associated 
with the application (not included in estimate). Estimate assumes 50 hours of 
document preparation and one revision based on client edits. 
 
Deliverable: Section 1602 application package. 

  
Not to Exceed: $ 8,250 

 
13. Coastal Zone Development Permit Application 

 
Preparation and submittal of a Coastal Zone Development Permit application to the 
County of Monterey / CCC, for a permit pursuant to the Coastal Zone Management 
Act. The County of Monterey has an approved Local Coastal Program, and permit 
applications are directed to the County on behalf of the CCC.  Estimate assumes 50 
hours of document preparation and one revision based on client edits. Note that 
there may be required processing fees by the County or CCC which are not included 
in this cost estimate (i.e., to be paid by applicant at the time of submittal). 

 
Deliverable: Coastal Development Permit application package. 

 
Not to Exceed: $8,250 

 
14. Revegetation Plan  

 
Based on comments received from the RWQCB and State Parks during previous 
project permitting efforts, it is expected that a revegetation plan will be required. 
Preparation of document for use by regulatory agencies regarding expected 
management of temporarily impacted wetlands and riparian uplands. This 
Revegetation Plan will describe the planting plan (palette and location) and 

160



performance measures (success criteria) as well as monitoring requirements. 
Specifications regarding the use of container stock, stems from existing plants (e.g., 
willow stakes), and/or transplants will also be included. The plan will also address 
the removal of invasive weeds from the project area. This Revegetation Plan is 
expected to be submitted to RWQCB, CDFW, and State Parks for ultimate approval 
and inclusion in project permits. Company will work with project engineers and will 
include proposed grading and planting plans (plans by engineer). Estimate assumes 
90 hours of document preparation and one revision based on client edits. Scope 
does not include expected annual biological monitoring and survey. 
 
Deliverable: Revegetation Plan. 

 
Not to Exceed: $15,000 

 
Total for all Tasks: $168,815.00 

 
 
 
 
Compensation 
 
This cost estimate is provided is valid for a term of 60 days.  In the event that this agreement is not executed 
by both parties prior to 60 days, the cost estimate may Change. The work described above is partially 
advisory in nature, and therefore some work products are produced based on information that is outside of 
the control of the Company; for this reason, the cost estimate is intended to provide a general estimate of the 
expected costs, based on hourly rates, and is not intended to provide a guarantee of actual costs.  Invoices will 
be provided on a monthly basis and will reflect actual hours worked during the billing cycle. Invoices are to 
be paid within 30-days of receipt by Client. 
 
Expenses will be invoiced to Client at actual incurred costs and may include expenses such as document 
production and reproduction, vehicle mileage (calculated at IRS standard), GPS unit rental, and other 
consumables related to field evaluations.  
 
 
 

161



Signatures 

the “Company” 

Johnson Marigot Consulting, LLC 

By:___________________________________ 
     Lauren Bingham, Project Manager 

Date:      January 21, 2020 

Address: 
              433 Visitacion Ave 

          Brisbane, CA 94005 
(415) 602-2970

“Client”

Carmel Area Wastewater District 

By:___________________________________ 
     Signature 

Date:________________________________ 

Address: 
            3945 Rio Rd 

Carmel, CA 93922 

162



ENCLOSURE 2 
Rate Sheet 

 
 

 

163



 
 
 
 

2020 Rate Sheet 
 
 
 
 

Cameron Johnson, Manager / Senior Regulatory Specialist ……………$200 / Hour 
Paula Gill, Senior Regulatory Specialist…………………………….……………$185 / Hour 
Lauren Bingham, Senior Regulatory Specialist ………………….…………...$170 / Hour 
Sadie McGarvey, Associate Regulatory Specialist……..……..…………..….$160 / Hour 
Haley Smith Henderson, Botanist………………………….…………….…………$100 / Hour 
Danielle Pubill, Office Manager………………………………………………………...$75 / Hour 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

164



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-30 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $168,815 FOR 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING SERVICES FOR THE CARMEL RIVER FLOODPLAIN 
RESTORATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL ENHANCEMENT (CRFREE) MITIGATION 

PIPELINE UNDERGROUNDING PROJECT– JOHNSON MARIGOT CONSULTING LLC - FOR 
PROJECT #19-21 

 
-oOo- 

 
 WHEREAS, a grant has been awarded to CAWD to fund completion of design and 

environmental work for relocating existing CAWD pipelines that would be negatively impacted 

by the CRFREE Project; and 

 WHEREAS, Johnson Marigot Consulting LLC has demonstrated expertise in the field of 

services required. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel Area 

Wastewater District that it does hereby authorize the General Manager to enter into a 

professional services agreement, with a not to exceed amount of $168,815, with Johnson Marigot 

Consulting LLC for environmental consulting services for the CRFREE Mitigation Pipeline 

Undergrounding Project. 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District duly held on May 28, 2020, by the following vote: 

 AYES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 

 NOES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 

 ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSTAIN:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

        _____________________________ 
        President of the Board 
ATTEST: 
__________________________ 
  Secretary of the Board 

165



STAFF REPORT     
 
         
To:   Board of Directors  
 
From:   Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer 
 
Date:    May 28, 2020   
 
Subject:         Acceptance of final completion of the FY2019/20 Manhole & Sewer Line 

Repair Project at Various Locations   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt Resolution 2020-31 accepting the 
completed project and directing the General Manager to file a Notice of Completion for 
the subject project.   
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The project consisted of the removal and replacement of forty feet of 6” diameter vitrified 
clay pipe with 8” diameter PVC (Poly vinyl chloride) pipe, replacement of 20 lids and 
frames at manholes, replacement of a 48”x 48” hatch and removal of a pipe intrusion 
through the sewer trunkline on Rio Road.  Extra work to add replacement of 3 additional 
manholes and lids in the amount of $3,150 was authorized by the General Manager.  
 
The remainder of the extra work bid item ($6,850) and $1,071.26 of contingencies was 
authorized by the General Manager to complete an extra day of work for removal of the 
pipe intrusion in the trunkline on Rio Road.  The pipe intrusion was found to be a pipe 
carrying the wiring for the traffic light owned by the County of Monterey and it took an 
extra day for the County’s contractor to cut and repair the wiring. All extra work was 
within the limits of the contract and approved contingencies. District staff will be 
submitting a claim against the County for the cost of the work required to fix the pipe 
intrusion which is $16,921.26. 
 
All work by the Contractor, Coastal Paving & Excavating, Inc. was inspected by District 
staff and was completed in conformance with our plans and specifications. Staff 
recommends that the Board of Directors accept the project and direct the General 
Manager to file a Notice of Completion with the Monterey County Recorder’s Office.  

 

 

166



 
FUNDING 
 
The project was awarded to Coastal Paving & Excavating, Inc. in the amount of $78,250, 
including $10,000 for extra work. A total of $1,071.26 in change orders were approved by 
the District during construction. A final contract price of $79,321.26 has been agreed upon 
by both parties and will be the record cost of the completed project. The project budget is 
$100,000. 
 
Attachment: 

• Notice of Completion 
 

167



168



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-31 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING COMPLETED PROJECT AND DIRECTING THE GENERAL 
MANAGER TO FILE A NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2019/2020 

MANHOLE & SEWER LINE REPAIR PROJECT AT VARIOUS LOCATIONS 
-oOo- 

 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel Area Wastewater District, 

Monterey County, California, that:  

 WHEREAS, the Principal Engineer has provided the Board an accounting of the cost of 

changes to the Fiscal Year 2019/2020 Manhole & Sewer Line Repair Project (the “Project”) in 

the amount of $1,071.26.  This amount is within the amount the Board previously authorized 

the General Manager to approve, making the total cost of the project $79,321.26; and 

 WHEREAS, the Principal Engineer of said District has filed with the Secretary of said 

District an Engineer’s Certificate regarding completion of the construction of the Project done 

under and pursuant to the contract between said District and Coastal Paving & Excavating dated 

February 3, 2020; and 

 WHEREAS, it appears to the satisfaction of this Board that said project provided for 

under said contract has been completed as provided in said contract and the plans and 

specifications therein referred to and that the work was completed on April 10, 2020. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED as follows: 

 1.  That acceptance of said Fiscal Year 2019/2020 Manhole & Sewer Line Repair Project 

be, and it is hereby made and ordered in accordance with California Civil Code §9200(a). 

169



 2.  That in accordance with California Civil Code Section §9204 the General Manager is 

directed to file for record with the County Recorder of the County of Monterey a notice of 

completion as of the date of acceptance by the District of said Fiscal Year 2019/2020 Manhole & 

Sewer Line Repair Project as required by law. 

  PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on May 28, 2020 by the following vote: 

 AYES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 
 
 NOES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 
 
 ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

 
ABSTAIN:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

 
 
 
        _____________________________ 
        President of the Board 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________ 
  Secretary of the Board 

170



STAFF REPORT     
 
         
To:   Board of Directors  
 
From:   Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer 
 
Date:    May 28, 2020   
 
Subject:         Project #19-04 - Carmel Highlands Sewer Collection System Expansion – 

Yankee Point and Otter Cove 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt (1) a resolution authorizing the 
General Manager to enter into a contract with the Yankee Point/Otter Cove neighborhood 
to manage the feasibility study being undertaken by MNS Engineers Inc. in the amount 
of $47,000 and to allow staff time to be charged at an hourly rate up to an amount of 
$6,000, and (2) a resolution authorizing the General Manager to enter into a contract with 
MNS Engineers, Inc. in the amount of $47,000 to complete a sewer feasibility study for 
the Carmel Highlands Sewer Collection System Expansion – Yankee Point and Otter 
Cove. 
 
DISCUSSION 

The Yankee Point/Otter Cove neighborhood in Carmel Highlands has been interested in 
extending sewer service to their area and are included in the proposed annexation that 
the District is pursuing. The proposed area of study ranges from south of the Carmel 
Highlands Pump Station to Aurora Del Mar on the west side of Highway 1 as shown on 
the attached figure.  The residents have selected a reputable engineering firm to complete 
a feasibility study to provide sewer service to the area. MNS Engineers, Inc. (MNS) have 
provided a proposal to do the work for $47,000 (see attached). 
 
This subject was brought to the Board in December 2018 but after the Board authorized 
staff to enter into a contract with the Yankee Point /Otter Cove  neighborhood leader, Dan 
Keig, he realized that he did not agree with the contract language.  Negotiations have 
been ongoing between our attorney and Mr. Keig’s attorney since that time and with the 
support of our attorney, staff has recently been able to reach an agreement with Mr. Keig.   
 
The Agreement that is being proposed is fairly simple in scope. The District will provide 
the engineering contract administration and ensure conformance with CAWD standards.  

 

171



We are requesting that the proponents of the project deposit the full amount of the MNS 
contract with the District and CAWD will pay invoices and provide accounting details to 
the project participants.   
 
We are also requesting that the project participants reimburse the District for staff time, 
up to $6,000. 
 
FUNDING 

This project will be funded by the proponents of the project with $47,000 for the MNS 
contract and $6,000 for staff time. 
 
Attachments: 

• Map of Highlands Yankee Point and Otter Cove Study Area 
• Proposed Agreement between CAWD and Highlands Yankee Point/Otter Cove 

Neighborhood 
• Proposal from MNS Engineers for Professional Engineering Services for the 

Carmel Highlands Sewer Collection System Expansion – Yankee Point and Otter 
Cove

172



 
 

 

173



811 El Capitan Way, Suite 130
 

 

San Luis Obispo, CA 93401 

Ph 805.787.0326 F 805.787.0437 
 
 
 

February 25, 2020 

Carmel Area Wastewater District 
Attention: Rachél Lather 
3945 Rio Road 
Carmel, CA 93923 

 
 

SUBJECT: Professional Engineering Services for the Carmel Highlands Sewer Collection System Expansion – 
Yankee Point and Otter Cove 

 
 

Dear Ms. Lather, 
 

MNS Engineers, Inc. (MNS) appreciates this opportunity to provide this proposal for professional engineering 
services. This proposal includes services for the evaluation of feasibility in expanding the Carmel Area Wastewater 
District (CAWD, District) service area on the southwest side of the current boundary to extend sewer service to those 
properties west of Highway 1, beginning south of the Carmel Highlands Pump Station and terminating at Aurora Del 
Mar, also known as Otter Cove and Yankee Point. MNS proposes to develop a conceptual design with cost estimates 
for connection of a new sewer collection system to convey wastewater to the nearest available connection with 
CAWD. Considerations to install multiple different utilities simultaneously will also be evaluated.  

 
Background 
Several community meetings have been held between CAWD and interested property owners in the Carmel 
Highlands area for the purpose of discussing how CAWD can facilitate expansion of sewer collection service to 
properties along Highway 1 south of the Carmel Highlands Pump Station. CAWD has agreed to facilitate a feasibility 
and preliminary engineering design study to determine potential costs and construction risks that will be funded by 
the private property owners. This study will guide interested property owners in making an educated decision to 
proceed (or not) with full design and construction of a sewer line extension. Design and construction costs are 
anticipated to be financed through a public finance instrument; however, estimates of individual property owner costs 
are needed to gauge interest from the community. 

 
Project Approach to Developing Alternatives and Conceptual Design 
MNS will provide professional engineering services to develop a technical memorandum examining alternatives and 
developing a conceptual design of a sanitary sewer collection system extension. The purpose of this first phase is to 
understand project challenges, the extent of the work, and alternatives for the project. This planning proposal also 
includes a task for coordination with other major utilities, including electrical, communications, and gas to develop a 
common utility trench or other alterative design acceptable to underground multiple utilities simultaneously. 

 
The preparation of design plans and specifications for construction can be prepared under additional tasks or scope. It 
is assumed LAFCO Annexation, California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Compliance and environmental 
permitting will be completed under separate contract.  

 
Scope of Work 
Based on our understanding of the immediate project needs, we propose the following scope of services: 

 
Task 1 – Project Management, Site Visit, and QA/QC 
This task includes collecting and coordinating information with the District throughout the duration of the project and 
conducting Quality Assurance and Quality Control (QA/QC) reviews on each deliverable. MNS staff will also conduct 
a site visit and meeting to initiate the project and establish locations of existing facilities. At the kick-off meeting, MNS 
will discuss coordination with CAWD and the appropriate utilities requested by the neighborhood members who are 
funding this request. Meeting minutes and site issues, if any, will be documented and forwarded to CAWD for review 
and comment. In accordance with MNS policy, an internal QA/QC review will be performed prior to each submittal. 
Nick Boswell, PE, will serve as the Project Manager and Tyler Hunt, PE, will provide QA/QC reviews. 

174



Carmel Area Wastewater District 
Technical Evaluation for Carmel Highlands Sewer Collection System Extension 

P A  G  E  2 

 

 

 
 

Task 2 – Utility and Agency Meetings, Coordination and Planning 
This task will include meeting with utility agencies to coordinate planning for undergrounding the respective utilities 
as part of this project. Utility coordination may include PG&E, AT&T, Comcast, or other service providers identified by 
the District. MNS will also request information from utility agencies which may have below grade facilities in the 
project area to provide a basis for identifying potential utility conflicts. Additionally, MNS will discuss the project with 
Caltrans to identify project requirements within Highway 1. 

 
Task 3 – Alternatives and Conceptual Design 
MNS will evaluate the feasibility of extending the CAWD sewer system on Highway 1 south of the Carmel Highlands 
Pump Station near the Carmel Highlands Inn; the number of connections needed to serve residents and other 
facilities along the new route will be also determined. To improve the cost benefit ratio of sewer installation, MNS will 
attend a design concept meeting coordinated by CAWD with utility providers (natural gas, electricity, high speed 
internet, and others, if available) to review common utility trench designs and the approvals required to install 
multiple utilities simultaneously. With information from the utility coordination meeting, MNS proposes to conceptually 
design a sewer extension with appropriate facilities and provide for additional utilities to be installed simultaneously. 
This will involve extending the sewer approximately 10,500 linear feet and evaluating the need for associated 
facilities such as lift stations. MNS will coordinate an evaluation of the existing sewer capacity with CAWD and 
determine the location of the connection to the District’s sewer collection system. A kick-off meeting and site visit as 
described in Task 1 will initiate the project.  

 
The sewer extension evaluation will include: 

 
 Estimated flow projections for the new service area, including proposed and approved future developments; 

 A hydraulic verification of the proposed pipeline capacity and contribution of wastewater flow from the 
proposed extension to the downstream collection system at the connection point; 

 A list of alternatives for the sewer extension, including alignment and construction method options; 

 A recommended preliminary pipeline alignment based on aerial photography (Google Earth and/or 
Monterey County GIS) and site reconnaissance for constructability and accessibility concerns; 

 An order-of-magnitude project cost estimate for each alternative, including design and administrative costs 
based on anticipated length of pipeline, number of manholes, number of laterals, and lift stations; 

 A separate cost estimate for rerouting sewer lines from individual residences to the new laterals at the 
property line; 

 A recommendation of open trench or trenchless construction method, or a combination of both, for the 
pipeline extension; 

 An evaluation of alternative piping materials. 
 

Deliverables 
 
Project deliverables will include: 

 

 A draft and final Technical Memorandum summarizing the conceptual design and other items to be 
addressed, including exhibits showing the proposed sewer alignments and pump station locations and a 
preliminary schedule for planning, permitting, and construction of the project. 

 Estimated implementation costs for extending sewer collection service and other utilities to the project area, 
with costs divided by the number of parcels planned to be served to provide a basis for developing 
assessment and sub-assessment districts.  

 
  

175



Carmel Area Wastewater District 
Technical Evaluation for Carmel Highlands Sewer Collection System Extension 

P A  G  E  3 

Task 4 – Presentation of Findings to Property Owners 
This task will include attending a two-hour meeting coordinated with CAWD and the Carmel Highlands home owners 
at Carmel Highlands fire station to review the findings in the draft Technical Memorandum and explaining the 
illustrations of risk and costs. The meeting will provide the interested parties an opportunity to comment on the 
Technical Memorandum; any comments requiring further clarification will be responded to by MNS and included in the 
final Technical Memorandum. 

Schedule 
The following schedule of milestones has been prepared based on an anticipated notice to proceed. 

Kick-off Meeting       March 2020 

Meeting with Utility Agency Representatives Six weeks after kick-off meeting (estimated) 

Draft Technical Memorandum Four weeks after meeting with Utility Reps 

Review by Property Owners Two weeks after Draft Submittal 

Final Technical Memorandum Two weeks after Review 

Project Team 
MNS proposes the same team for all tasks, led by Nick Boswell, PE, as the Project Manager. He will be supported 
and Sean Packard, PE, as the Project Engineer, with additional internal support provided as necessary. Tyler Hunt, 
PE, Lead Engineer, will perform QA/QC on all deliverables. Complete resumes for team members can be provided 
upon request. Brief bios for each team member are provided below. 

Nick Boswell, PE 
Role: Project Manager 
License: Professional Civil Engineer, CA No. 72138 
Yrs Exp: 12 
Mr. Boswell will manage the project and lead the technical analysis and design effort for this project. Nick has 
worked on numerous sewer collection system designs, including replacement, extensions, and rehabilitation. 
Nick’s professional consulting experience in the water resources industry has advanced through a variety of 
municipal infrastructure design projects including wastewater, recycled water and potable water efforts. He has been 
involved in every stage of the design process, including planning, design and construction management. He actively 
manages projects to meet both technical and financial goals. As Project Manager, Nick is responsible for leading the 
production of project deliverables including Preliminary Design, Contract Documents, and other project deliverables. 
Nick will coordinate the work of other staff as needed, particularly for AutoCAD services. 

Sean Packard, PE, QSD/QSP 
Role: Project Engineer 
License: Professional Civil Engineer, CA No. 88388 
SWPPP Developer/Practitioner, CA No. 88388 
Yrs Exp: 5 
Mr. Packard will provide technical analysis and design support for the sewer extension. Sean has blended his 
education in environmental engineering with real-world civil engineering practices to provide engineering support for 
a wide range of water resources and wastewater projects. Along with his past experience working on federally-owned 
projects, he has been involved in various stages of analysis, design, and construction management. Sean is 
proficient in AutoCAD, hydraulic modeling, geographic information systems (GIS), technical writing, and overall 
project design. Sean will provide technical support during all phases of the project. 

176



Carmel Area Wastewater District 
Technical Evaluation for Carmel Highlands Sewer Collection System Extension 

P A  G  E  4 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Tyler Hunt, PE, QSD/QSP 
Role: QA/QC Review 
License: Professional Civil Engineer, CA No. 74580 
SWPPP Developer, CA No. 74580 
Yrs Exp: 20 
Mr. Hunt will provide quality assurance of each deliverable prior to submittal. Tyler has over 20 years of experience 
in the water resources/wastewater industry with expertise including project management, site improvements, 
wastewater treatment, wastewater reclamation, irrigation and water delivery, stormwater pollution prevention, low-
impact development (LID), water system consolidation, and municipal infrastructure projects. In addition to 
engineering design, he is experienced with providing construction management and inspection services such as 
public utility coordination, inspection, estimating, and client support. Tyler will review and perform QA/QC on each 
deliverable prior to submittal to the District. 

 
Compensation 
MNS proposes to perform all tasks in the scope of services described for a total lump sum fee of $47,000, as 
detailed in the following table. All fees are in accordance with the MNS 2019 standard rate schedule, provided 
as an attachment.  
 
Task 1 – Project Management, QA/QC, and Meetings $7,500 
Task 2 – Utility and Agency Meetings, Coordination and Planning $8,500 
Task 3 – Conceptual Design $28,000 
Task 4 – Presentation of Findings to Property Owners $3,000 
Total $47,000 

 
 

Closing 
Thank you for considering MNS Engineers, Inc. for this project. Please contact Nick Panofsky at 805.592.2074, 
npanofsky@mnsengineers.com, or Drew Lander at 408.438.7294, dlander@mnsengineers.com, if you have any 
questions or if we can provide additional information. 

 
Sincerely, 
MNS Engineers, Inc. 

 

 
Enclosure (1): Rate Schedule 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Nick Panofsky, PE 
Lead Engineer 

177



 

 
 

2 0 1 9  S T A N D A R D  S C H E D U L E  O F  F E E S  

PROJECT/PROGRAM MANAGEMENT 
Principal-In-Charge ............................... $275 
Senior Project/Program Manager ...... 250 
Project/Program Manager .................... 210 
Assistant Project/Program Manager 180 
Senior Project Coordinator ................... 155 
Project Coordinator ................................. 125 

 

ENGINEERING 
Principal Engineer .................................. $240 
Lead Engineer ............................................ 215 
Supervising Engineer .............................. 200 
Senior Project Engineer ......................... 185 
Project Engineer........................................ 170 
Associate Engineer .................................. 155 
Assistant Engineer.................................... 140 

SURVEYING 
Principal Surveyor .................................. $225 
Lead Surveyor .......................................... $215 
Supervising Surveyor .............................. 200 
Senior Project Surveyor ......................... 180 
Project Surveyor........................................ 160 
Senior Land Title Analyst....................... 155 
Associate Project Surveyor ................... 145 
Assistant Project Surveyor .................... 130 
Party Chief  .................................................. 155 
Chainperson ............................................... 135 
One-Person Survey Crew ...................... 185 

 
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT 
Principal Construction Manager ...... $250 
Senior Construction Manager ............. 235 
Resident Engineer .................................... 210 
Structure Representative ....................... 190 
Construction Manager ........................... 185 
Assistant Resident Engineer................. 165 
Construction Inspector (PW)  .............. 152 
Office Administrator ................................ 105  

TECHNICAL SUPPORT 
CADD Manager ....................................... $160 
Supervising Technician .......................... 145 
Senior Technician ..................................... 135 
Engineering Technician .......................... 105 

ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT 
Senior Management Analyst ............. $160 
Management Analyst............................ $135 
Administrative Analyst ......................... $115 
IT Technician ............................................... 110 
Graphics/Visualization Specialist ....... 100 
Administrative Assistant ........................... 75 

 
GOVERNMENT SERVICES 
City Engineer ........................................... $215 
Deputy City Engineer .............................. 195 
Assistant City Engineer ........................... 180 
Plan Check Engineer................................ 170 
Permit Engineer ......................................... 150 
City Inspector ............................................. 125 
City Inspector (PW) .................................. 150 
Principal Stormwater Specialist .......... 155 
Senior Stormwater Specialist ............... 140 
Stormwater Specialist ............................. 125 
Stormwater Technician .......................... 115 
Building Official ......................................... 175 
Senior Building Inspector ...................... 150 
Building Inspector .................................... 135 
Planning Director ...................................... 185 
Senior City Planner .................................. 160 
Assistant Planner ...................................... 145 
Senior Grant Writer .................................. 160 
Grant Writer ................................................ 135 
Grant Associate ......................................... 105 
Grant Assistant .............................................85 

 
DIRECT EXPENSES 
Use of outside consultants as well as copies, blueprints, survey stakes, monuments, computer plots, telephone, travel (out of area) 
and all similar charges directly connected with the work will be charged at cost plus fifteen percent (15%). Mileage will be charged 
at the current federal mileage reimbursement rate. Expert Witness services will be charged at three (3) times listed rate and will 
include all time for research, deposition, court appearance and expert testimony. 

PREVAILING WAGE RATES 
Rates shown with Prevailing Wage “(PW)” annotation are used for field work on projects subject to federal or state prevailing 
wage law and are subject to increases per DIR. 

ANNUAL ESCALATION 
Standard fee rates provided for each classification are subject to an annual escalation increase of 3.0% starting January 1, 2020. 

OVERTIME 
Overtime for non-exempt employees will be charged at 1.5 x hourly rate; overtime for non-exempt employees and other 
classification will be charged at 1 x hourly rate. 

178



AGREEMENT PROVIDING MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
FOR THE CONTRACT TO PLAN & DESIGN WASTEWATER FACILITIES TO 

CONNECT THE HIGHLANDS YANKEE POINT/OTTER COVE NEIGHBORHOODS 
TO THE CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT 

 
 
This Agreement, dated ___________________, 2020, is by and between the Carmel Area 
Wastewater District (hereinafter referred to as the “District” or “CAWD”) and the Yankee 
Point/Otter Cove neighborhood (hereinafter referred to as “Participants”) for services generally 
described as Contract Management Services for the Yankee Point and Otter Cover Sewer 
Expansion Feasibility Study. 
 
Overview 
 
The Yankee Point/Otter Cove neighborhood (hereinafter referred to as “Participants”) is located 
on the west side of Highway 1 in the Highlands area of Big Sur is currently on septic service for 
wastewater. There are potentially ~350 residential connections in these neighborhoods. The 
Participants have indicated an interest in connecting to the District and would like to begin the 
process by performing a feasibility study to determine potential costs and construction risks. 
 
The Participants have asked if the District will manage the feasibility study contract with MNS 
Engineers, Inc. 
 
The District has agreed to furnish this service under the following conditions: 
 
I. SERVICES or MATERIALS to be PERFORMED or FURNISHED by CAWD 
 

A. District staff will be responsible for all administrative and contract management 
services during the feasibility study.   

B. The Participants have requested the District to enter into an agreement with MNS 
Engineers, Inc. to provide engineering services by completing the feasibility study 
described in Overview above.  District will negotiate such agreement with MNS 
Engineers, Inc.  If agreement is reached, and terms are acceptable to Participants, the 
District Board will consider its approval.  If so approved, the District’s role will be 
solely as described in subsections A, C, and D of this Section I. 

C. The District agrees to interact with MNS Engineers Inc as requested during the study.  
In addition, upon completion of the study, if requested by the Participants, the District 
is open to participating in a public meeting to discuss results of the study and 
potential next step forward. 

D. CAWD’s direct involvement will be administration, design review for conformance 
with CAWD standards, oversight, meetings, and coordination. 

 
It will be the responsibility of the Yankee Point/Otter Cove neighborhood at the conclusion of 
the feasibility study and acceptance of the study by CAWD to evaluate the proposed project and 
consider whether they wish to continue.  
 

179



 
II. COMPENSATION 
 
The Participants will be responsible for all costs of the CAWD-MNS Engineers, Inc. agreement.  
Upon request of CAWD following Board approval of this (CAWD-Participants) agreement, 
Participants shall deposit $47,000 with CAWD.  If during their providing services, MNS 
Engineering, Inc. for any reason recommends additional services, Participants shall be notified 
by CAWD and requested to approve and pay for such services.  Unless so approved and paid, 
MNS Engineers, Inc. will not provide such additional services. 
 
IN ADDITION, Participants shall compensate CAWD on a time and materials basis for actual 
work performed by CAWD hereunder up to a maximum of $6,000. Hourly rates for labor are 
attached hereto in Exhibit “B”. All other costs to be billed “at cost” without markup for profit. 
The District will provide a detailed billing showing all costs incurred, with billings to be paid 
within 30 calendar days. 
 
 
III. PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE NOTICES  
 
The District and the Participants each designate the following persons to act as authorized 
representatives of the District and the Participants in matters and decisions pertinent to the timely 
performance of this Agreement and each authorized representative will have full powers to bind 
the District or the Participants including, but not limited to, transmitting instructions, receiving 
information, making project-related decisions not requiring official District approval and other 
matters.  All notices or other official correspondence relating to work under this Agreement may 
be given by being personally delivered, by being placed in the United States mail, first-class 
postage prepaid, or by being sent by overnight prepaid air addressed to the party to whom notice 
is to be given.  Each notice shall be deemed to be effective upon receipt if personally delivered 
or sent by air freight, or five days after being so mailed.  Any notice may also be given by 
facsimile.  Notice shall be provided to the following names and addresses: 
 
For the Carmel Area Wastewater District: 
    Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
    Carmel Area Wastewater District 
    P.O. Box 221428 
    Carmel, CA  93922 
 
For the Participants: 
    Daniel Kieg 
    ___________________ 
    ___________________ 
  

180



 
IV. FORCE MAJEURE 
  
The District is not responsible for damages or delay in performance caused by acts of God, 
strikes, lockouts, accidents, or other events beyond the control of the District. 
 
 
V. GOVERING LAW & DISPUTE RESOLUTION  
 

A. Governing Law:  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California.  

 
B. Duty to Meet and Confer:  If any dispute arises between the parties as to proper 
interpretation or application of this Agreement, the parties shall first meet and confer in a 
good faith attempt to resolve the matter between themselves.  Representatives of each 
party will personally meet and attempt in good faith to resolve the dispute.   

 
C. Mediation:  If their representatives are unable to resolve the dispute within 15 
days thereafter, the parties agree to first endeavor to settle the dispute in an amicable 
manner, using mandatory non-binding mediation under the rules of the Judicial 
Arbitration and Mediation Service (“JAMS”).  The expenses of witnesses for either side 
shall be paid for the party producing such witnesses.  All other expenses of the 
mediation shall be borne equally by the parties, unless they agree otherwise.  Any 
resultant agreements from mediation shall be documented in writing.  All mediation 
proceedings, results, and documentation shall be inadmissible for any purpose in any 
legal proceeding (pursuant to California Evidence Codes sections 1115 through 1128), 
unless otherwise agreed upon in writing by both parties.  Mediators shall not be subject 
to any subpoena or liability, and their actions shall not be subject to discovery.  
Mediation shall be completed within 30 days after request for the mediation by either 
Party or such additional time as may be mutually agreed upon in writing by both parties.   

 
D. Arbitration: If the dispute is not or cannot be resolved by mediation, the parties 
may mutually agree (but only as to those issues of the matter not resolved by mediation) 
to submit their dispute to arbitration.  Before commencement of the arbitration, the 
parties may elect to have the arbitration proceed on an informal basis; however, if the 
parties are unable so to agree, then the arbitration shall be conducted under the rules of 
JAMS.  The decision of the arbitrator shall be binding unless within 30 days after 
issuance of the arbitrator’s written decision a party files an action in a court of law.  
Venue and jurisdiction for any legal proceeding between the parties shall lie in the 
Superior Court for the County of Monterey. 

 
VI. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS – EXHIBITS  
 

Additional provisions of this Agreement are set forth on Exhibits “A” – “B”.  All 
Exhibits shall be attached to this Agreement and are incorporated and made a part by 
reference. 

181



 
VII. AMENDMENT OR MODIFICATION  
 

This Agreement may be amended, altered or modified only by written agreement 
executed by both parties. 

 
VIII. FURTHER ASSURANCES 
 

Each of the parties agree to execute and deliver to the other such documents and 
instruments, and to take such actions, as may reasonably be required to effectuate the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement; provided, however, such covenant shall not have 
the effect of increasing the obligations of any party pursuant to this Agreement or require 
any representations and warranties by any party. 

 
IX. SEVERABILITY 
 

Should any provision of this Agreement be declared invalid and unenforceable in any 
jurisdiction by a court of competent jurisdiction, then such portion or provision shall be 
deemed to be severable, to the extent invalid or unenforceable, from this Agreement as to 
such jurisdiction (but, to the extent permitted by law, not elsewhere) and shall not affect 
the remainder hereof.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, a) such provision of this 
Agreement shall be interpreted by the parties and by any such court, to the extent 
possible, in such a manner that such provision shall be deemed to be valid and 
enforceable, and b) such court shall have the right to make such modifications to any 
provision of this Agreement as do not materially affect the rights or obligations under this 
Agreement of the parties hereto and as may be necessary in order for such provision to be 
valid and enforceable. 

 
X. WAIVER 
 

No waiver of any right or obligation of any of the parties shall be effective unless in 
writing, specifying such waiver, executed by the party against whom such waiver is 
sought to be enforced.  A waiver by any of the parties of any of their rights under this 
Agreement on any occasion shall not be a bar to the exercise of the same right on any 
subsequent occasion or of any other right at any time. 

 
XI. ATTORNEYS FEES 
 

Should either party to this Agreement bring legal action against the other, (formal judicial 
proceeding or arbitration), the case shall be handled in Monterey County, California, and 
the party prevailing in such action shall be entitled to a reasonable attorney's fee which 
shall be fixed by the judge, or arbitrator hearing the case and such fee shall be included in 
the judgment, together with all costs. 

  

182



XII. COUNTERPARTS 
 

This Agreement may be executed in two counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 
original, but both of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

 
 
XIII. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties regarding the 
subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior or contemporaneous negotiations, 
understandings or agreements of the parties, whether written or oral, with respect to such 
subject matter. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed in duplicate by the Yankee 
Point/Otter Cove Participants and the duly authorized representatives of the District effective the 
date first shown above. 
 
CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT 
 
 
By: ___________________________________ 
    Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

183



 
 
 
 

Yankee Point/Otter Cove 
“Participant” 

 
A.P.N.    Owner Name    Address 
 
 
 
 
By:  ________________________________ 
 
Name: _______________________________ 
 
Date:   ______/______/18 
 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF MONTEREY 
 
On this _____ day of _______________, in the year 2020, before me, personally appeared 
__________________________________, personally known to me (or proved to me on the 
basis of satisfactory evidence) to be the person whose name is subscribed to this instrument, and 
acknowledged that he/she executed it. 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Notary Public 
 
      Term Expires:  ________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

184



 
 
 

Exhibit “B” 
CAWD Schedule of Charges 

 
 
Personnel Compensation 
 

Classification Hourly Rate 
Principal Engineer $77.78 
Plant Engineer $77.78 
Principal Accountant $58.05 
Admin Svcs/Board Clerk $39.95 

 
 
Direct Expenses 
 
Reimbursement for direct expenses, as listed below, incurred in connection with the work will be 
at cost.  Examples of such items may include, but are not limited to: 
 

a. Maps, photographs, 3rd party reproductions/printing and special supplies required to 
complete the work. 

b. Project specific telecommunications and delivery charges 
c. Special fees, insurance, permits and licenses applicable to the work 

 
 
The foregoing Schedule of Charges is incorporated into the agreement for services provided, 
effective July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020.  After June 30, 2020 invoices will reflect the 
Schedule of Charges current in effect. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

185



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-32 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 
CONTRACT WITH THE  CARMEL HIGHLANDS YANKEE POINT/OTTER COVE 

NEIGHBORHOOD TO MANAGE THE FEASIBILITY STUDY TO BE UNDERTAKEN 
BY MNS ENGINEERS, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $47,000 AND TO AUTHORIZE 
RECOVERY OF STAFF TIME SPENT IN CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION – FOR 

PROJECT #19-04 
 

-oOo- 
 

WHEREAS, the Carmel Highlands Yankee Point/Otter Cove neighborhood has 

expressed an interest in connecting to the District (Carmel Area Wastewater District) for 

sewer service; and 

 
WHEREAS, the appropriate initial step is an engineering feasibility study to 

determine how such a system could be undertaken and what the costs might be; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Carmel Highlands Yankee Point/Otter Cove neighborhood has 

asked the District to manage the contract with MNS Engineers Inc. and agreed to front 

the costs of the contract.  The neighborhood has asked to reimburse staff time only at 

the hourly rate. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District that it does hereby authorize the General Manager to enter 

into a contract with the Carmel Highlands Yankee Point/Otter Cove neighborhood to 

manage the feasibility study to be undertaken by MNS Engineers Inc. in the amount of 

$47,000 and to allow staff time to be charged at an hourly rate up to $6,000. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 
Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on May 28, 2020 by the following vote: 

 

 

 

186



AYES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT:    BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSTAIN:    BOARD MEMBERS: 

 

 

     ________________________________________________ 

     President of the Board 

 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 
Secretary of the Board 

 

187



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-33 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 
CONTRACT WITH MNS ENGINEERS, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $47,000 TO COMPLETE 
A SEWER FEASIBILITY STUDY FOR THE CARMEL HIGHLANDS SEWER COLLECTION 

SYSTEM EXPANSION – YANKEE POINT AND OTTER COVE 
- FOR PROJECT #19-04 

-oOo- 
  
 WHEREAS, THE District (Carmel Area Wastewater District) has determined that it is an 

appropriate use of staff time to assist the homeowners in the Carmel Highlands Yankee 

Point/Otter Cove neighborhood by managing a sewer expansion feasibility study to be 

completed by MNS Engineers, Inc.; and 

 WHEREAS, the District agrees to enter into a contract directly with MNS Engineers, Inc. 

provided that the homeowners deposit the full contract amount with the District prior to 

commencing any work. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel Area 

Wastewater District that it does hereby authorize the General Manager to enter into a contract 

with MNS Engineers, Inc. in the amount of $47,000 to complete a sewer feasibility study. 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District duly held on May 28, 2020 by the following vote: 

 
 AYES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 
 
 NOES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 
 
 ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

 
ABSTAIN:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

 
        _____________________________ 
        President of the Board 
 

ATTEST: 
 
__________________________ 
  Secretary of the Board 

188



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent 
 
Date:  May 28, 2020 
 
Subject: Project #18-18 - Amendment-Programmable Logic Controller (PLC)/ 

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) Programming 
Proposal for Frisch Engineering 

 
RECOMMENDATION  

It is recommended that the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to amend the 
contract with Frisch Engineering for an additional $10,000. The original contract was 
$79,390. The total contract would be $89,390 with this amendment.    
 
DISCUSSION  

The Pump Station PLC/SCADA Replacement Project (Project #18-18) is close to 
completion. The control panels have been installed and programming completed. The 
remaining items include startup, commissioning, documentation and training. The 
budgeted amount for FY19/20 is $450,000 in which $377,436 has been encumbered. 
There is $7,417 remaining for the contract but additional work is anticipated to close out 
the project.  
 
The additional tasks include:  
 

• As-built drawings of motor starter panels. Many of the panels have had minor 
changes and staff would like to update the motor starter panel drawings so they 
are accurate. The contract only included the new control panel as-builts.  
 

• Staff recommends that the control system portion of the Operation and 
Maintenance (O&M) Manual be updated to reflect the updated system. Frisch 
engineering would provide an updated O&M Manual specific to the new level 
control and alarm system.  

 
• Provide additional programming to add visibility and control of Highlands 

Pump station at Calle La Cruz pump station.  

  

189



FUNDING 

The amount of $10,000 would come from the 2019-20 Collections Capital Improvement 
Budget allotted for this project. The total project budget for FY19/20 is $450,000. 
Including this amendment, the project would still be within budget.   
 

190



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-34 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AMENDED 
CONTRACT WITH FRISCH ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS FOR PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $10,000 TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL 
ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE “PUMP STATION PROGRAMMABLE LOGIC 

CONTROLLER (PLC)/ SUPERVISORY CONTROL AND DATA ACQUISITION (SCADA) 
REPLACEMENT PROJECT” - FOR PROJECT #18-18 

 
-oOo- 

 
 WHEREAS, the District requires additional professional services from Frisch 

Engineering Consultants for PLC and SCADA work associated with pump station controls; and 

 WHEREAS, Frisch Engineering Consultants has performed adequately under the 

existing contract previously authorized by the Board and has demonstrated expertise in the 

field of services required.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel Area 

Wastewater District that it does hereby authorize the General Manager to enter into an 

amended professional services agreement to increase the prior contract amount by $10,000, with 

Frisch Engineering Consultants for additional engineering services for the “Pump Station 

PLC/SCADA Replacement Project”. 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District duly held on May 28, 2020, by the following vote: 

 AYES:       BOARD MEMBERS: 
 NOES:       BOARD MEMBERS: 
 ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS: 
 ABSTAIN:  BOARD MEMBERS: 
 
        _____________________________ 
        President of the Board 
ATTEST: 
__________________________   
Secretary of the Board 

191



 

 

 

Other Items 

 

 

192



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
 
Date:  May 28, 2020 
 
Subject: Internship Policy 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors provide direction to staff on formalizing 
an internship policy at the District.   
 
Staff recommendations include: 

• Staff recommends the Board consider approval of a paid internship program.  A 
paid program will allow coverage under the District’s workers comp policy. 
Unpaid interns would not be covered under workers comp, which could present 
an issue if an intern were to be injured onsite. 

• In lieu of a paid internship directly with the District, staff recommends an 
alternative program option that partners with another sponsoring entity, such as 
a school, with workers comp coverage negotiated under that sponsoring agency. 

• Formalize the program with job descriptions and hiring mechanism approved by 
the board (and/or Salary/Benefit Committee). 

• Staff requests that implementation of any internship program not accept any 
applicants until the COVID-19 situation is no longer an ongoing concern. 

 
DISCUSSION 
 
The Board has expressed an interest in establishing an internship program at CAWD’s 
treatment facility.  To provide some background of previous internship efforts, the 
District closed its internship program around the year 2000 after being faced with 
unemployment claims based on a paid internship. The internship wages were roughly 
$2K and the unemployment claim was $6K. That unfortunately put a damper on any 
efforts for several years. We have taken some steps towards internships more recently 
by hiring interns or temps to work on a specific task such as inventory management. 
This past year the District employed a high school student for 40 hours in the lab as a 
learning experience. This hire was not formally linked to any school. We do not have a 
formal written internship policy statement or a written job description. 
 

  

193



The creation of an Intern Policy requires that we define District goals for the program 
and determine what type of program to offer. Until this time, this is not something we 
have formally done.  
 
Although unpaid internships are not the recommendation from staff (due to the 
workers comp issues); if unpaid internships were undertaken, the interns work has to 
be primarily for the “benefit of the intern” and the work must follow the requirements 
set forth by the U.S. Department of Labor and California Department of Labor 
Standards. If all of the specific requirements demonstrating the work is for the “benefit 
of the intern” are not met, then the intern is legally an employee who must be paid 
minimum wage and receive all other protections guaranteed by state and federal 
employment law. 
 
Job Description 

The recommendation for a formal internship program is that the District develop and 
present to the Salary/Benefit Committee formalized job descriptions for any internship 
position. Internships could be offered for various career paths (Operations, Lab, 
Engineering, Maintenance). Because interns require significant oversight from staff, the 
availability of department staff to manage an intern would need to be taken under 
consideration for any given internship. 
 
Injury Liability Considerations 

A paid intern would be covered under the District’s workers comp policy. An unpaid 
intern would not be an employee and therefore would not be covered by workers comp.  
 
If the internship is part of a sponsored program, the school or university sponsoring the 
program should agree in advance to be responsible for any injury on the job. 
 
Unemployment Liability Considerations 

For the purposes of California unemployment, all employment income is eligible for 
unemployment benefits if all eligibility requirements are met. Internships do not have 
special considerations that would necessarily deem them ineligible.   
 
A mutually agreed to finite employment period does not make an employee ineligible 
for unemployment. However, an individual would be ineligible for unemployment if 
they leave employment to attend school, college, or university as a regularly enrolled 
full-time student for so long as the individual is in attendance. 
 
The District pays unemployment on a case by case basis and would not pay unless a 
claim meeting eligibility requirement is filed. 
 
Financial Considerations 

194



CAWD will need to create a budget for an internship program.  The budget is 
dependent upon how the program is structured (i.e. paid vs. unpaid). 
 
Due to a CalPERS requirement, employees must be enrolled in the retirement system 
once they work 1,000 hours per fiscal year. Similarly, if employees work over 20 hours 
per week on average over one year or longer, they are required to be enrolled in 
CalPERS. 
 
Table 1 shows varying degrees of cost for an internship depending on various 
internship structures. The District has an established policy of providing pro-rated 
benefits to all part time employees.  However, an internship policy could potentially be 
different. The option of providing pro-rated benefits is included below. 
 
The analysis below is for 1 intern position.  The analysis includes drug testing; but does 
not include a pre-employment physical. The analysis also does not include potential 
unemployment liability. 
 
Table 1: Internship Costs for Various Options 

 Unpaid or 
Sponsored 
(16 weeks) 

Paid  
No Benefits 
 ≤ 480 hours 
(16 weeks)  

Paid  
With Pro-Rated 

Benefits  
≤ 480 hours 
(16 weeks) 

Paid  
With Pro-Rated 

Benefits  
≥ 1,000 hours 

(26 weeks) 
Uniform ($3.54/wk.) $56.64 $56.64 $56.64 $92.04 
Boots $225 $225 $225 $225 
PPE (masks, gloves, 
safety glasses, etc.) 

 
$30 

 
$30 

 
$30 

 
$30 

Drug testing $160 $160 $160 $160 
Salary @ $20/hr. $0 $9,600 $9,600 $20,000 
FICA $0 $734.40 $734.40 $1,530 
Health insurance $0 $0 $800.64 $2,502 
CalPERS $0 $0 $0 $1,397 
Workers Comp $0 $391.37 $391.37 $815.59 
Life $0 $0 $24.53 $73.65 
PEHP $0 $0 $120 $250 
Dental $0 $0 $480 $1,000 
Vision $0 $0 $21.16 $66.15 
Long Term Disability $0 $0 $120 $250 
Paid Sick Leave $0 $0 3.6 days 7.5 days 

Estimated budget $471.64 $11,197.41 $12,763.74 $28,391.43 
 

195



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer 
 
Date:  May 28, 2020 
 
Subject: Administration Building COVID Improvement Project Update 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
This report is for information and discussion only – no action is required. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Analysis is underway for special upgrades to the CAWD Administration Building to 
reduce COVID exposure for staff and the public who use the building. 
 
A conceptual scope for this project has been developed by staff with input from 
President White and Director Rachel. The first intention of the project is to modify the 
existing building to control COVID exposure vectors while allowing the permit desk to 
reopen for in-person permit processing. The second intention is to eventually allow 
community groups to use the board room after new controls are in place in the board 
room and restrooms.  
 
The project is in the early stages and no cost has been expended other than staff time. 
There is also no budget reserved yet. It is expected that budget for this project and other 
COVID related safety improvements would be added to the FY20/21 Budget which will 
be presented to the full board at the June 2020 Board Meeting.   
 
The Scope of improvements at the Administration Building which are being evaluated 
include:  
 

1. Enclosed Vestibule at Front Desk - A completely enclosed vestibule area at the 
front desk is being proposed, which will keep the public visiting the front 
desk/permit desk completely separated from the rest of the office building. The 
enclosed vestibule would be aesthetically pleasing and would include any 
engineering controls necessary to eliminate exposure of employees from 
members of the public using front desk services and eliminate air transfer from 

  

196



the vestibule into the main office. A combination of an enclosure, exhaust 
ventilation, automatic doors, and decontamination equipment, and/or cleaning 
procedures would meet the intent. 
 

2. Modifications to existing Heating and Ventilation System – Staff have been in 
conversation with an outside professional engineer with hospital ventilation 
design system experience and are considering hiring this engineer to design and 
implement installation of UV and HEPA filters on the existing air handling 
equipment and assisting with re-balancing of ventilation to introduce more 
external air. 
 

3. Board Room Use by Outside Community Groups - Staff understands that 
maintaining our service to the community by providing meeting space is 
desirable. However, there are challenges associated with re-opening the board 
room that require solutions and risk management. Currently, the board room has 
its own ventilation system separate from the rest of the office. However, the 
restrooms are part of the main office space. One option being considered is 
having a cleaning crew disinfect the restrooms and board room immediately 
after any community group meetings and that the cleaning fee be charged to the 
group using the board room. 
 

4. Decontamination Approaches Being Considered to Complement Other 
Improvements – Staff is evaluating the potential of using routine 
decontamination methods including: regular physical disinfecting with 
chemicals, and Portable UV lights or ozone systems which could be turned on at 
night when the office is closed to actively disinfect areas on a routine basis.  

 
FUNDING 
 
No budget has been defined thus far for this project and no money has been spent. It is 
anticipated that the improvements would be between $25K to $50K depending on the 
scope of the remodel. 

197



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer 
 
Date:  May 28, 2020 
 
Subject: Acting General Manager Report 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
This report is informational only – no action is required. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Our fearless leader Barbara Buikema took two weeks off in May and it was my turn to 
fill in for her as Acting General Manager. I am extremely grateful for the opportunity. I 
am also extremely grateful for the front office staff who worked diligently on District 
business and kept the office running smoothly while I was Acting GM. Two weeks flew 
by in the blink of an eye.   

 
Since COVID lockdowns started in March, I have been working at home as most of my 
work lately has been compatible with working remotely. After almost two months of 
that, it was good to get out of the house for two weeks and setup my work station at the 
District main office. In general, my observation of CAWD staff during this time is that 
all departments are carrying on with great poise and resilience. Staff are taking the 
COVID pandemic very seriously, but we are continuing to make significant progress on 
important ongoing operations, maintenance, and project work. From a bird’s eye view 
there would seem to be little change to our productivity and day to day operations. 
Nonetheless, there is significant energy being spent on proactive safety measures to 
keep staff healthy and safe. We are learning everyday how best to continue the 
important work we do amidst the new normal and adjusting our activities as needed to 
remain resilient. I believe CAWD is no stranger to challenges; and it shows by how the 
District is handling the current challenge. 
 
Here are some of the notable accomplishments involving all CAWD staff in the last two 
months since the start of the pandemic that show the ongoing progress of District 
business: 
 

  

198



• Installation of new programmable logic controllers in each of our collection 
system pump stations (Foley, Lauer, Lather) 

• Bidding and Award of two major collection system rehabilitation projects –     
#19-07 Rio Road CIPP Project, and #18-17 Hatton Canyon Pipe Rehab Project 
(Lather) 

• Completion of the Manhole & Sewer Line Repair Project (Lauer, Lather) 

• Start of irrigation season and ramping up production of the Reclamation 
treatment facilities (Waggoner, Young) 

• Securing a lab contract with Biobot for conducting tests to determine presence of 
COVID-19 in incoming wastewater streams as a service to the wider public 
health agenda (Waggoner, DeOcampo) 

• Continued repairs and maintenance to treatment plant infrastructure (Operators 
and Maintenance Staff) 

• Continued sewer jetting, responding to underground service alerts, and sewer 
lateral inspections (Collections Staff) 

• Installation of a new chiller for the Microturbines (Foley, Maintenance Staff) 

• Installation of a new food waste receiving pump (Maintenance Staff) 

• Development of the Reclamation Budget for FY20/21 (Waggoner, Young, Foley 
Buikema, Grover, Treanor) 

• Continued removal and disposal of built up material in abandoned digester 
planned for demolition (Waggoner, Operations Staff) 

• CEQA and Final Design almost complete for #18-01 Elec/Mech Rehab and Sludge 
Holding Tank Replacement Project (Treanor) 

• Final review of September Ranch development sewer design plans completed 
(Lather, Lauer, Treanor) 

• Installation of a larger bioxide storage tank at the Highlands Pump Station 
(Lauer, Collections Staff) 

• Significant progress made on design of project #18-07 Standby Power Reliability 
Project (Treanor, Foley) 

 

199



These are just some of the higher profile work items that come to mind, but there is also 
a significant list of additional necessary and routine work activities that have continued.  
 
As part of the new normal, staff are conducting routine cleaning and disinfecting of 
employee common areas, maintaining physical distancing, implementing engineering 
controls, wearing face masks, holding meetings via video conference, and disinfecting 
hands throughout daily activities. The general consensus seems to be that this new 
normal will continue for an extended period of time and the goal is to implement best 
practices that are going to be sustainable. My belief is that we need to be prepared for 
the upcoming winter flu season which could present another wave of infections.  
 
Thank you for the learning experience. 
 

200



STAFF REPORT 
  
 
To:   Board of Directors  
 
From:   Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer on Behalf of 

Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
 
Subject:  Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) Coastal 

Development Permit Expense Summary 
 
Date:  May 28, 2020 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report - Informational only; no action required.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
March 2020 marked the successful completion of a multi-year effort working with the 
California Coastal Commission to define a roadmap for addressing future sea level rise 
concerns under the Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) Coastal Development Permit. 
CAWD and stakeholders (Pebble Beach Community Services District (PBCSD), Pebble 
Beach Company, and the Independent Reclaimed Water Users Group) worked together 
to reach this important milestone. 
 
Successful completion of this effort is largely attributable to the outside consulting and 
legal assistance that was brought in to navigate the back and forth process with the 
Coastal Commission. There were three outside consultants/legal firms who assisted:  
McCabe & Company, Armbruster Goldsmith & Delvac LLP, and Wellington Law 
Offices. McCabe & Company provided assistance early on in the process starting in 
May 2017, and provided valuable assistance interpreting how the Coastal Act applied to 
CAWD, helping to organize meetings with the appropriate people at the Coastal 
Commission, and generally guiding CAWD through a complex set of issues related to 
the Coastal Development Permit at the WWTP. During the later stages of this process 
Armbruster Goldsmith & Delvac LLP was hired to review the permit language and 
identify areas of the permit that could be improved in discussions with the Coastal 
Commission. Wellington Law Offices acted in their capacity as the CAWD and PBCSD 

 

 

201



legal counsel and helped CAWD and PBCSD act in the best interests of our constituents.    
 
The total cost of the consultants and legal assistance totaled $417,737. The costs are 
shared between the stakeholder groups based on the relative stake in the existing 
WWTP site as advised by stakeholder representatives and CAWD ad hoc committee 
members. Initially the Reclamation Project was not sharing any of the permitting costs 
until it became clear that the Reclamation Project would benefit from the efforts to take 
a nuanced approach to the sea level rise issues in discussions with the Coastal 
Commission. It was advised by the stakeholder representatives and CAWD ad hoc 
committee members that the Reclamation Project should share cost effective April 2019. 
The calculated share between the groups is as follows:  
 

 Cost Share 
CAWD $252,210.43 
PBCSD $120,046.73 

Reclamation Project $45,480.82 
Total: $417,737.98 

 
The attached spreadsheet shows the detailed cost history and cost sharing for the 
Coastal Development Permit consulting and legal.   
 
Attachment: 

• California Coastal Commission Expense Summary 

202



California Coastal Commission Expense Summary

Date CAWD PBCSD Reclamation Total CAWD PBCSD Reclamation Total CAWD PBCSD Reclamation Total
May‐17 18,503.87 9,238.07 27,741.94 0.00
Jun‐17 6,670.00 3,330.00 10,000.00 2,164.35 2,164.35
Jul‐17 6,670.00 3,330.00 10,000.00 1,635.35 1,635.35
Aug‐17 6,670.00 3,330.00 10,000.00 415.04 415.04
Sep‐17 6,670.00 3,330.00 10,000.00 0.00
Oct‐17 6,670.00 3,330.00 10,000.00 0.00
Nov‐17 6,670.00 3,330.00 10,000.00 0.00
Dec‐17 6,670.00 3,330.00 10,000.00 0.00
Jan‐18 6,670.00 3,330.00 10,000.00 211.73 211.73
Feb‐18 6,670.00 3,330.00 10,000.00 0.00
Mar‐18 7,026.68 3,508.08 10,534.76 0.00
Apr‐18 6,870.60 3,430.15 10,300.75 0.00
Feb‐19 13,340.00 6,660.00 20,000.00 1,814.00 1,814.00
Feb‐19 6,670.00 3,330.00 10,000.00 3,434.00 3,434.00
Mar‐19 6,670.00 3,330.00 10,000.00 2,082.00 2,082.00
Apr‐19 5,625.80 2,808.68 2,108.62 10,543.10 2,180.29 1,088.51 817.20 4,086.00
May‐19 5,336.00 2,664.00 2,000.00 10,000.00 2,542.07 1,269.13 952.80 4,764.00
Jun‐19 5,336.00 2,664.00 2,000.00 10,000.00 8,004.00 3,996.00 3,000.00 15,000.00 451.43 225.37 169.20 846.00
Jul‐19 5,336.00 2,664.00 2,000.00 10,000.00 2,508.21 1,252.23 940.11 4,700.55 1,074.14 536.26 402.60 2,013.00
Aug‐19 5,599.58 2,795.59 2,098.79 10,493.96 4,519.46 2,256.34 1,693.95 8,469.75 557.08 278.12 208.80 1,044.00
Sep‐19 5,652.34 2,821.94 2,118.57 10,592.85 279.44 139.51 104.74 523.69 0.00
Oct‐19 5,336.00 2,664.00 2,000.00 10,000.00 1,664.90 831.20 624.03 3,120.13 103.99 51.92 38.98 194.89
Nov‐19 5,336.00 2,664.00 2,000.00 10,000.00 104.89 52.36 39.31 196.56 124.86 62.34 46.80 234.00
Dec‐19 5,336.00 2,664.00 2,000.00 10,000.00 1,862.93 930.07 698.25 3,491.25 691.55 345.25 259.20 1,296.00
Jan‐20 5,336.00 2,664.00 2,000.00 10,000.00 5,943.73 2,967.41 2,227.79 11,138.93 739.57 369.23 277.20 1,386.00
Feb‐20 5,336.00 2,664.00 2,000.00 10,000.00 9,744.70 4,865.05 3,652.44 18,262.19 1,314.79 656.41 492.80 2,464.00
Mar‐20 5,399.11 2,695.51 2,023.65 10,118.27 10,695.79 5,339.87 4,008.92 20,044.58 961.12 479.84 360.24 1,801.20
Mar‐20 309.04 154.29 115.83 579.16

TOTAL 184,385.03 92,054.30 24,465.46 300,904.79 45,328.05 22,630.04 16,989.54 84,947.63 22,497.35 5,362.39 4,025.82 31,885.56

Total CAWD 252,210.43 CAWD 54%
Total PBCSD 120,046.73 PBCSD 26%

Total Reclamation 45,480.82 Recl 20%
Sum Total 417,737.98

McCabe & Company Armbruster Goldsmith & Delvac LLP Wellington Law Offices

Total Cost Share Cost Sharing Effective April 2019

203



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
 
Date:  May 28, 2020 
 
Subject: Summary of Monterey County Treasurer Report dated 03-31-20 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
No action required – this is informational only 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The U.S. economy entered the year on strong footing, however, that deteriorated 
quickly as the COVID-19 pandemic took hold across the globe, including the U.S.  With 
a virtual economic shutdown, and a global health crisis at hand, the Federal Reserve 
responded aggressively by cutting rates at two emergency meetings to the new target 
range of 0% to 0.25%. Treasury yields plunged in response to the Fed's new zero interest 
rate policy, with longer-term Treasury yields reaching new historic lows. The 
immediate impact of the pandemic on global economies made typical economic 
indicators, most of which are backward-looking, essentially irrelevant. 
 
On March 31st, 2020, the Monterey County investment portfolio contained an amortized 
book value of $ 1,814,628,516.77 spread among 187 separate securities and funds. The 
par value of those funds was $1,817,425.030.14 with a market value of $1,814,484,769.93 
or 100% of amortized book value. The portfolio's net earned income yield for the period 
was 2.25%. The portfolio produced an estimated quarterly income of $10,116,975.49 that 
will be distributed proportionally to all agencies participating in the investment pool. 
The investment portfolio had a weighted average maturity of 278 days. The County 
Treasury continues to use shorter term debt to provide portfolio liquidity. 
 
 
 
 

  

204



PORTFOLIO CHARACTERISTICS 
 09-30-19 12-31-19 03-31-20 
Total Assets $1,557,346,900.60 $1,853,827,448.73 $1,817,425,030.14 
Market Value $1,550,705,225.56 $1,848,747,198.94 $1,814,484,769.93 
Days to 
Maturity 

350 331 278 

Yield 2.46% 2.32% 2.25% 
Estimated 
Earnings 

$9,734,550.44 $9,758,162.96 $10,116,975.49 

 
The Monterey County Treasurer’s portfolio consists of fixed income investments, all of 
which are authorized by the State of California Government Code 53601. 
 

PORTFOLIO ASSET COMPOSITION 03-31-20 
Corporate Notes 13.6% 
Overnight Liquid Assets 18.9% 
US Treasuries 56.1% 
Federal Agencies 1.7% 
Commercial Paper 6.1% 
Negotiable CDs 2.1% 
Supranationals 1.5% 
Municipal Bonds <0.1% 
Asset Backed Securities 0.0% 
 
Future Strategy:  Given the volatile market environment due to the COVID-19 
pandemic, the Treasury has a “hold and see” approach leaving maturing investments in 
short-term accounts for potential liquidity needs. As the situation continues to unfold, 
the portfolio will be actively managed under the established tenets of safety and 
liquidity while seeking to maximize the rate of return. 
 
The investment portfolio was in compliance with all applicable provisions of state law 
and the adopted Investment Policy and contained sufficient liquidity to meet all 
projected outflows over the next six months. 
 
Note:  The Monterey County Treasurer Report is available at:  
Detail for 3.31.20 
https://www.co.monterey.ca.us/home/showdocument?id=90182 
 
Detail 9.30.19 & 12.31.19 
https://www.co.monterey.ca.us/home/showdocument?id=86034 

205

https://www.co.monterey.ca.us/home/showdocument?id=90182
https://www.co.monterey.ca.us/home/showdocument?id=86034


 
 

CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT 
SUMMARY OF RETIREMENT PENSION PLAN TRUSTEES  

MEETING HELD – April 29, 2020 
 

A meeting of the Retirement Pension Plan Trustees was held on Wednesday, 
April 10, 2020 at 10:00 a.m.     
 
Those Present Included: Michael Rachel, Director, Trustee 
    Rob Wellington, Legal Counsel, Trustee 
    Barbara Buikema, General Manager, Trustee 
    William Hastie, Hastie Financial Group 
    Haley Hitchman, Hastie Financial Group 
 
Note:  This meeting was held via Go to Meeting software 
   

I. 1st Quarter 2020 Review 
 
The Standard & Poor’s (S&P) 500 index reflected a 19.60% decrease for the 1st 
Quarter.  In line with our portfolio investment objectives and mix of 60% 
stocks/40% bonds there was a total weighted return of -13.49% with total losses 
of $768,151.36. Fixed Income securities helped the portfolio to retain value.  Some 
of the 1st Qtr. losses were recovered in April, but Mr. Hastie anticipates more 
volatility going forward.   
 
Our portfolio utilizes fixed income to focus on downside market protection and 
will play offense and defense simultaneously. Hastie described the pandemic as 
“event shock” or a liquidity even where bond prices dropped along with stocks.  
In general, there is an inverse relationship between stocks and bonds 58% of the 
time.  The remainder, or 42% of the time, they move in the same direction, which 
is what happened in the 1st quarter. 
 
Performance by Security shows that Small and Mid-Cap did outperform the S&P.  
The Emerging Market while down 26.40% is doing well in recovery.  On the 
Bond side, Schwab U.S. Aggregate mirrored Barclay index and PGIM High Yield 
Fund correlated with S&P. 
 
 

II. 2nd Quarter Action Plan 
 
Hastie recommends selling a portion of Invesco Developing Markets (Int’l 
Equity), Vanguard Intermediate Bond, and Schwab US Aggregate Bond.  The 
Bond market has had a difficult time due to lack of liquidity with large investors 

206



leaving the market.  Although Vanguard had a broad range of investments it still 
sagged.  The focus was on where Treasury was buying – essentially driving 
liquidity to the market.  Recommendation to purchase Guggenheim Market 
Neutral REIT (Real Estate Investment Trust) which is economically sensitive; if 
the market does well so does the REIT.  Actively managed funds are making 
money by insulating their portfolio as much as possible from liquidity traps. 
 
Portfolio Risk Measures (3-year measure): 
 
 Three 

Year 
 

S&P 500 
Five 
Year 

 
S&P 500 

Ten  
Year 

 
S&P 500 

Beta (a) 0.58  0.59  0.63  
Standard 
Deviation (b) 

9.03 15.21 8.29 13.65 8.67 13.30 

Mean 5.78 5.10 5.69 6.73 8.09 10.53 
Alpha (c) 1.75  1.02  1.04  

(a) Strategy is to maintain Beta in the range of 0.60 - 0.67.  CAWD Beta is 
currently on the low side, but given the current environment Mr. Hastie is 
satisfied 

(b) Strategy is to remain at roughly 2/3 of S&P 500, this is inline with current 
investment objectives 

(c) Alpha is strong given that gold is down, and markets are up.   
 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at approximately 
10:45 a.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Barbara Buikema 
General Manager  

207



1st Quarter 2020 Review
2nd Quarter 2020 Action Plan
April 29, 2020

Carmel Area Wastewater District
Defined Benefit Plan

208



1st Quarter OVERVIEW

209



YTD 2020 OVERVIEW

210



1st Quarter OVERVIEW

211



1st Quarter OVERVIEW

212



MARKET REVIEW – 3/31/2020

3 Month 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year

S&P 500 TR -19.60 -6.98 5.10 6.73

Russell 1000 -20.22 -8.03 4.64 6.22

Russell Mid Cap -27.07 -18.31 -0.81 1.85

Russell 2000 Growth -30.61 -23.99 -4.64 -0.25

MSCI EAFE -23.43 -16.84 -4.54 -3.35

MSCI Emerging Markets -23.87 -19.80 -3.97 -2.73

Barclays Capital US 
Aggregate 3.15 8.93 4.82 3.36

213



2ND QUARTER 2020 FUND CHANGES

 Rebalance the rest of the portfolio

 Sell:
 Invesco Developing Markets (1/2 of position)

 Vanguard Intermediate Bond Index

 Schwab US Aggregate Bond

Buy:
 Guggenheim Market Neutral REIT

 American Funds Government Securities

 Guggenheim Total Return

214



2ND QUARTER 2020 OVERALL PORTFOLIO

10%

14%

5%

10%

5%
7%4%

5%

8%

10%

8%

9%
5%

JP Morgan Large Cap Growth - 10%

iShares Core S&P 500 - 14%

Columbia Contrarian Core - 5%

Columbia Dividend Income - 10%

Vanguard Mid Cap - 5%

Federated Kaufmann Small Cap - 7%

Invesco Developing Markets - 4%

Guggenheim Market Neutral REIT - 5%

PGIM Global Total Return - 8%

American Funds Govt. Securities - 10%

Guggenheim Total Return - 8%

PGIM High Yield - 9%

Cash - 5%

215



RISK & RISK ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE

BETA
A measure of volatility (risk) relative to the Standard & Poor's 500 Index.  Beta of 1.0 indicates 
risk equal to that of the Standard & Poor's 500 Index over a given period of time, usually 3, 5 and  
10 years.  Beta of less than 1.0 indicates risk less than that of the S&P 500 Index.

3 Year 5 Year 10 Year
CAWD Portfolio 0.58 0.59 0.63

216



FUND RISK & COST STATISTICS

Mutual Fund/ETF 3 Year Beta Net Expense 
Ratio

JPMorgan Large Cap Growth 1.06 0.69
iShares Core S&P 500 1.00 0.04
Columbia Contrarian Core 1.03 0.77
Columbia Dividend Income 0.86 0.71
Vanguard Mid Cap 1.05 0.04
Federated Kaufmann Small Cap 1.09 0.91
Invesco Developing Markets 1.05 1.16
Guggenheim Market Neutral REIT 0.42 1.65
PGIM Global Total Return 1.28 0.63
American Funds Govt. Securities 0.76 0.36
Guggenheim Total Return 0.74 0.52
PGIM High Yield 0.29 0.55

217



RISK & RISK ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE

STANDARD DEVIATION:

Another measure of volatility (risk).  A higher Standard Deviation indicates a higher degree of volatility 
(risk) over a given period of time, usually 3, 5 and 10 years.  We will compare the CAWD Portfolio with 
the S&P 500 Index.

3 Year 5 Year 10 Year_
CAWD Portfolio 9.03 8.29 8.67

Standard & Poor's 500 Index 15.21 13.65 13.30

218



RISK & RISK ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE

MEAN:

Mean return over a given period of time, usually 3, 5 and 10 years.  We will compare the CAWD 
Portfolio with the S&P 500 Index.

3 Year 5 Year 10 Year
CAWD Portfolio 5.78 5.69 8.09

Standard & Poor's 500 Index 5.10 6.73 10.53

219



RISK & RISK ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE

ALPHA:

A measure of risk-adjusted returns.  An Alpha of 0 indicates a return proportionate to the degree of 
risk taken.  A positive Alpha indicates a return generated in excess of the degree of risk taken.

3 Year 5 Year 10 Year
CAWD Portfolio 1.75 1.02 1.04

220



LAFCO of Monterey County 
   _ 

 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY 
 
 
 
      
MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:    May 13, 2020  

TO:    Members of the Independent Special District Selection Committee 
  c/o District General Managers, Fire Chiefs and CEOs 

FROM:   Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT:     Election of LAFCO Commissioner – Final Result 

 
The election process to fill one Special District seat on the Local Agency Formation 
Commission of Monterey County concluded on May 8.  

Warren “Pete” Poitras, President of the Monterey County Regional Fire 
Protection District, was elected by the Independent Special District Selection 
Committee to a second term as a Special District Regular Member Commissioner. 
The term will expire in May 2024.  Mr. Poitras will take the oath of office and be 
seated at the LAFCO meeting on May 18.  

Thank you for participating in this process.    

 

                             2020  
          Commissioners 

 
                                     Chair 

                                   Matt Gourley 
                                Public Member 

          
                            Vice Chair 
                         Ian Oglesby 

                                    City Member  
                                                          
                                          Luis Alejo 
                              County Member 
                                     

                    Joe Gunter 
                                    City Member  

          
                              Mary Ann Leffel 
                Special District Member 
                    
                          Christopher Lopez 
                              County Member 
                                                                                                                                                         

                       Maria Orozco                               
     City Member, Alternate 

 
                           Jane Parker 
County Member, Alternate 

 
                   Warren Poitras 
   Special District Member 

          
                              Steve Snodgrass 
             Public Member, Alternate 
                                                                                   

                Graig R. Stephens 
Special District Member, Alternate  
                       

                            Counsel 
                  

                    Kelly L. Donlon 
                  General Counsel 

                            
                Executive Officer 

 
           Kate McKenna, AICP 

                  
         132 W. Gabilan Street, #102 

               Salinas, CA  93901 
 

                       P. O. Box 1369 
                Salinas, CA  93902 

 
          Voice:  831-754-5838 

               
 

          www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 
 

221


	01.A Board Packet Cover
	3945 Rio Road, Carmel, CA 93923

	01.B Public Meeting Procedure
	03. COVID-19 Staff Report 05-28-20_MDias-V2
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	04.A 04.30.2020 Board Meeting Minutes - Final
	CONSENT CALENDAR: APPROVAL OF MINUTES, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MONTHLY REPORTS
	RESOLUTIONS
	CONSENT CALENDAR: APPROVAL OF MINUTES, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MONTHLY REPORTS (further discussion to include Director Siegfried)

	04.B 04.29.2020 Pension Committee Meeting Minutes
	05. H&W Accountants Independent Letter-April 2020 gl
	06. Schedule of Cash Receeipts & Disbursement Modification
	2019-20vA
	2019-20v1
	graph 1

	2019-20v2.2
	graph 2


	07. CAWD Disbursements-April 2020
	08. Reclamation Disbursements-April 2020
	09. Financial Statements- April 2020S
	10.A Collections April-March-Feb 2020 Board Report
	STAFF REPORT
	From:  Daryl Lauer, Collection Superintendent
	RECOMMENDATION

	Permits Issued
	Maintenance
	Construction activities
	 Contractors replaced 13 manhole frame and lids at various locations around the Carmel lagoon area.
	General comments

	10.B Collections April-March-Feb Cleaning Map 2020
	11. Staff & Regulatory Compliance Safety Report 05- May 2020
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	12. Treatment & Facility Ops Report-(Feb-April 2020)
	13. Laboratory Report & Environmental Compliance-April 2020 4[60154]
	14. Implementation Plan Schedule 5-19-20
	15. Project Summaries 5.28.20
	16. Plant Operations Staff Report April 2020
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION
	Training:
	•   Staff is continuing online training at home from Target Solutions and Fred Pryor Seminars as Carmel Area Wastewater District implements its staffing policies for Action Plan Risk Level 3 for the COVID -19 virus at the treatment facility.
	Capital Improvement
	•   Staff continues to communicate with Plant Engineer, Patrick Treanor (CAWD), on the Electrical/Mechanical Rehabilitation and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement Project for the following areas: Influent Pump Station, Headworks, Blower Building, Chlorin...
	Meetings Attended
	 Monterey County Water Awareness Committee meeting canceled due to the COVID-19 pandemic.
	Discharge Permit Violations
	•   No Reclamation Permit 93-72 discharge violations for the month of April 2020.
	•    No Violations of the NPDES (National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System) NPDES Number CA0047996, Order No. R3-2014-0012 were encountered during the month of April 2020.
	FUNDING

	N/A-Informational item only

	17. Staff Maintenance Report - May 2020
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	18. Engineering Staff Report-May 2020
	18.B Resolutions Section Break
	19.A User Fee Rate Study - Staff Report 05-28-20
	19.B RFP Rate Model Study 05-28-20
	19.C RES 2020-26 Sewer User Fee Rate Study 05-28-20
	20.A Reclamation Budget 20-21-Staff Report
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	20.B Recl Budget 2020-21   Final
	20.C RES 2020-27 Adopting  CAWD-PBCSD Reclamation Project Budget 2020-21
	21. A CAWD Staff Report Annexation Circulate Mit Neg Dec rll (Rachel Lather)
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION
	NEXT STEPS

	21. B RES 2020-28 Mass Annexation Circulation of Mit Neg Dec
	RESOLUTION NO. 2020-28

	22. A Auth to Execute Contract with KJ for CRFREE Mitigation Pipeline Undergrounding Project-Staff Report
	22.B.1 CRFREE KennedyJenks Pipeline_Carmel_1_2020 $317K PDF
	Terms and Conditions
	Project Understanding
	Scope of Services
	Task 1 – Project Management, QA/QC
	Subtask 1.1 – Meetings
	Subtask 1.2 – Project Management
	Subtask 1.3 – Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC)
	Subtask 1.4 – Environmental and Surveying Support
	Task 2 – Design
	Task 2.1 – 30% Design
	Task 2 – Design
	Task 2.2 – 60% Design
	Task 2.3 - 90% Design
	Task 2.4 - Final Design (bid documents)
	Task 3 – Bid Phase Assistance
	Task 3.1 – Pre-Bid Meeting
	Task 3.2 – Prepare Addendum
	Task 3.3 – Review Bids
	Task 3.4 – Conformed Drawings
	Task 4 – Construction Phase Assistance
	Estimated Schedule
	Basis of Compensation
	Exhibit A
	Exhibit B

	22.C RES 2020-29 KennedyJenks - CRFREE Mitigation Pipeline Undergrounding Project$317K
	23.A Auth to Execute Contract with Johnson Marigot for CRFREE Mitigation Pipeline Undergrounding Project
	23.B 200121_FINAL_CRFREE_SOW-V1-$169K Marigot pg removed
	23.C RES 2020-30 Johnson Marigot - CRFREE Mitigation Pipeline Undergrounding Project
	24.A FY2019-20 Manhole  Sewer line Repair Project-Notice of Completion - Staff Report
	24.B Manhole & Sewer Line Repair Project-NOC
	24.C RES 2020-31 FY2019-20 Manhole & Sewer Line Notice of Completion (Rachel Lather)
	25. A Carmel Highlands Yankee Point -Otter Cove Feasibility Study Staff Report
	25. B Yankee Point Otter Cove MNS $47K Proposal-R1-2-25-2020 (1)
	2019 Standard Fee Schedule v2 (No Dates) 2019-07-01 (3).pdf
	PROJECT/PROGRAM MANAGEMENT
	ENGINEERING
	SURVEYING
	TECHNICAL SUPPORT
	ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT
	GOVERNMENT SERVICES
	DIRECT EXPENSES
	PREVAILING WAGE RATES
	ANNUAL ESCALATION
	OVERTIME


	25. C Yankee Point Otter Cove Proposal to Provide Services $47K & $6K CAWD
	25. D RES 2020-32 Yankee Point Feasibility Study-Dan Kieg-$47K & $6K CAWD
	26. RES 2020-33 Resolution to Hire MNS for Yankee Pt
	27.A Amendment PLC-Scada-Staff Report Frisch Engineering $10K- May 2020
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	27.B Resolution 2020-34 Frisch Engineering Budget Amendment-$10K
	27.C Other Section Break
	28. Internship Policy  05-28-20
	29. Administration Building COVID Improvement Project Update
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION
	FUNDING

	30. Acting GM Report
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	32.A Coastal Commission Permit Expense Summary
	RECOMMENDATION

	32.B Coastal Commission Cost Summary-Attachment
	33. County Investment Report 03-31-20
	34.A Pension Plan Meeting 04-29-20 meeting summary
	34.B Hastie Financial Group CAWD Pension 2Q2020
	Carmel Area Wastewater District
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13

	35.B 2020 ISD LAFCO Election Results FINAL
	LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY




